
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS, AND 

WATER RESOURCES 
COMMITTEE MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 

 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 9, 2021 

10:00 A.M. 
 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 
VIEW THE MEETING LIVE ONLINE AT IEUA.ORG 

TELEPHONE ACCESS: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 316 524 615# 
 

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF EXECUTIVE ORDERS N-25-20 AND N-29-20 ISSUED BY 
GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM IN MARCH 2020 AND IN AN EFFORT TO PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH 
AND PREVENT THE SPREAD OF COVID-19, THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC LOCATION AVAILABLE 

FOR IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE.  
 
The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by dialing into the number 
provided above.   Alternatively, public comments may be emailed to the Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Denise Garzaro at dgarzaro@ieua.org no later than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time. 
Comments will be read into the record during the meeting. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons 
wishing to address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to 
email the Board Secretary/Office Manager no later than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time 
or address the Board during the public comments section of the meeting.  Comments will be limited to 
three minutes per speaker.  Thank you. 

 

 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

 
In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 
two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous 
vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action 
came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 
 

 
 
*A Municipal Water District 

mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


Engineering, Operations, & Water Resources Committee  
June 9, 2021 
Page 2 
 
1. CONSENT ITEMS  
 

A. MINUTES 
 Approve Minutes of the May 12, 2021 Engineering, Operations, and Water 

Resources Committee meeting. 
 

B. CCRWF ASSET MANAGEMENT & IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS - 
ADDENDUM TO THE FACILITIES MASTER PLAN PROGRAM 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 
1. Adopt the Addendum to the Facilities Master Plan Program 

Environmental Impact Report (SCH No. 2016061064) as the 
appropriate CEQA environmental determination for the CCWRF Facility 
Asset management and Improvement, Project No. EN17006; and  

 
2. Authorize the certification of the Addendum documentation to be signed 

by the General Manager. 
 

C. RATIFICATION OF A CHANGE ORDER FOR THE RP-1 MECHANICAL 
RESTORATION AND IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 
1. Ratify a construction change order for the RP-1 Mechanical Restoration 

and Improvements, Project No. EN17082, to Kiewit Infrastructure West 
Co., for the not-to-exceed amount of $121,869.34, increasing the 
contract $6,783,342.15 to $6,905,211.49 (approximately 1.8% 
increase); and  

 
2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the change order, subject to 

non-substantive changes. 
 

D. CONTRACT AWARD FOR 8TH STREET BASIN EARTHWORK AND 
INFILTRATION RESTORATION  
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 
1. Approve Contract No. 4600003606 to Jeremy Harris Construction, Inc, 

for the 8th Street Basin Earthwork and Infiltration Restoration Services for 
a not-to-exceed amount of $117,708; and  
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Engineering, Operations, & Water Resources Committee  
June 9, 2021 
Page 3 
 
2. ACTION ITEMS  
 

A. RECHARGE MASTER PLAN UPDATE PROJECT CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT AWARD 

 Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 

1. Approve the budget augmentation in RW15003.00 from $19,150,000 to 
$24,004,424; 
 

2. Approve the amendment to IEUA and CBWM’s Cost Sharing 
Agreement, Task Order No. 9, with Project No. RW15003.06; 

 
3. Approve the contract amendment for engineering support services 

during construction of the Project No. RW15003.06 to Carollo 
Engineers, Inc., for an amount of $397,977, increasing the contracts 
not-to-exceed amount to $3,158,230 (a 23% increase); 

 
4. Award the construction contract for the Project No. RW15003.06 to 

MNR Construction, Inc. in the amount of $15,480,880; and  
 
5. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts, subject to 

non-substantive changes. 
 

 

B. RP-4 PROCESS IMPROVEMENTS CHANGE ORDER  
 Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 

1. Approve a construction change order for the RP-4 Process 
Improvements, Project No. EN17110, to W.M. Lyles Co., for the not-to-
exceed amount of $2,627,436, increasing the contract from 
$10,553,000 to $13,180,436 (approximately 24.9% increase);  

 
2. Approve a budget transfer from the RP-4 Primary Clarifier 

Rehabilitation, Project EN17043, to the RP-4 Process Improvements, 
Project EN17110, in the amount of $2,500,000; and 

 
3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the change order and 

budget transfer, subject to non-substantive changes. 
 

C. INLAND EMPIRE BRINE LINE CAPACITY CONTRIBUTION 
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board adopt Resolution No. 2021-6-
9, committing an additional 0.3 MGD of Pipeline and 0.3 MGD of Treatment 
and Disposal Capacity to the Inland Empire Brine Line Lease Capacity Pool. 
 
 
 
 
 



Engineering, Operations, & Water Resources Committee  
June 9, 2021 
Page 4 
 

D. INLAND EMPIRE BRINE LINE CAPACITY UTILIZATION PROGRAM 
AGREEMENT 
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 
1. Approve the Inland Empire Brine Line Utilization Program Agreement 

between IEUA, EMWD, SBVMWD, WMWD, and SAWPA; and  
 
2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the Agreement, subject to 

non-substantive changes. 
 
 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. 2021 SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN AUDIT REPORT UPDATE 
(WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) 
 

B. RECYCLED WATER GROUND WATER RECHARGE UPDATE 
(POWERPOINT) 

 
C. 2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN, 2020 WATER SHORTAGE 

CONTINGENCY PLAN, AND 2015 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT 
PLAN ADDENDUM (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) 
 

D. ANNUAL REPORT OF THE PRADO BASIN HABITAT SUSTAINABILITY 
COMMITTEE (WRITTEN) 

 
E. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE (POWERPOINT) 

 
RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEM 
 
F. ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT 

UPDATES (POWERPOINT) 
 
 

4. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 
 
 

5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 
6. COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
ADJOURN  

 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in 
this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary/Office Manager (909-993-1736), 48 hours prior to the 
scheduled meeting so that the Agency can make reasonable arrangements. 



Engineering, Operations, & Water Resources Committee  
June 9, 2021 
Page 5 
 
 

 DECLARATION OF POSTING  
I, Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, A Municipal Water District, hereby certify that 
a copy of this agenda has been posted by 5:30 p.m.  to the IEUA Website at www.ieua.org and outside the Agency's main office, 6075 
Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino on Thursday, June 3, 2021. 
 

 
_______________________ 
Denise Garzaro, CMC 
 

http://www.ieua.org/


Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

 
  
 

              1A 

 

           CONSENT 
                         ITEM 



 

  

 
 

 
 

 MINUTES 
ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS, AND WATER RESOURCES 

COMMITTEE MEETING 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 

AGENCY HEADQUARTERS, CHINO, CA 
 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 12, 2021 
10:00 A.M. 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference 
 Michael Camacho, Chair 
 Marco Tule 
 
STAFF PRESENT 

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager 
Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager 

 Christina Valencia, Executive Manager of Finance & Administration/AGM  
 Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
 Daniel Solorzano, Technology Specialist I  
  

STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference 
 Jasmin A. Hall, President 
 Kathy Besser, Executive Manager of External & Government Affairs/AGM 
 Randy Lee, Executive Manager of Operations/AGM 
 Adham Almasri, Principal Engineer 
 Jerry Burke, Manager of Engineering    
 Pietro Cambiaso, Deputy Manager of Strategic Planning & Resources  
 Andrea Carruthers, Manager of External Affairs 
 Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Manager of Finance & Accounting 
 Robert Delgado, Manager of Operations 
 Lucia Diaz, Deputy Manager of Maintenance 
 Don Hamlett, Acting Deputy Manager of Integrated System Services 
 Jennifer Hy-Luk, Administrative Assistant II 
 Joel Ignacio, Senior Engineer 
 Sylvie Lee, Manager of Strategic Planning & Resources 
 Jason Marseilles, Deputy Manager of Engineering 
 Liza Munoz, Senior Engineer 
 Cathleen Pieroni, Manager of Inter-Agency Relations 
 Sushmitha Reddy, Manager of Laboratories 
 Jeanina Romero, Executive Assistant 
 Travis Sprague, Principal Engineer 
 Wilson To, Technology Specialist II 
 Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit 
 Ryan Ward, Assistant Engineer 
 Brian Wilson, Senior Engineer  
 Jeff Ziegenbein, Manager of Regional Compost Operations 
 Jamal Zughbi, Senior Engineer/Project Manager 

 



Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 
May 12, 2021 
Page 2 
 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

Committee Chair Michael Camacho called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.  He gave the public 

the opportunity to comment and provided instructions for unmuting the conference line. 
 

There were no public comments received or additions to the agenda. 
 
 
1A – 1C.  CONSENT ITEMS 
The Committee:  
 

 Approved Minutes of the April 14, 2021 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources 
Committee meeting. 
 

 Recommended that the Board: 
 

1. Approve a three-year contract with two one-year renewal option with Denali Water 
Solutions, LLC for biosolids transportation and recycling services for 
approximately $510,000 per year (renewals to be adjusted annually using the 
Consumer Price Index) not-to-exceed $2,750,000 for five years; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract; 
 

 and 
 

1. Award a construction contract for the RP-3 Basin Improvement – New Diversion 
Structure, Project No. RW15003.05, to Metro Builders & Engineers Group, Ltd., 
in the amount of $634,881; and 

 
2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction contract, subject to 

non-substantive changes; 
 
as Consent Calendar items on the May 19, 2021 Board meeting agenda. 

 
 
2A – 2B. ACTION ITEMS 
The Committee:  
 

 Recommended that the Board: 
 

1. Award Strategic Planning & Resources Services Master Contracts to Brown & 
Caldwell, CDM Smith, GEI Consultants, GHD Inc., Kennedy-Jenks, Michael K. 
Nunley & Associates, Trussell Technologies, and Water Systems Consulting for 
five-year contract terms (with two, one-year extensions options) to provide as-
needed Planning & Compliance consulting services;  
 

2. Authorize the Master Contracts with aggregate not-to-exceed amount of 
$3,000,000; and 

 
3. Authorize the General Manager to approve, subject to non-substantive changes, 

and execute the Master Contracts; as an Action item on the May 19, 2021 Board 
meeting agenda. 

 



Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 
May 12, 2021 
Page 3 
 

 

 Recommended that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute the West Valley 
Water District Assistance Agreement, subject to non-substantive changes; as a Consent 
Calendar item on the May 19, 2021 Board meeting agenda. 
 
 

3A – 3C. INFORMATION ITEMS 
The following information items were presented or received and filed by the Committee: 
 

 Construction Industry Trends 
 RP-5 Expansion Project Update: May 2021 
 Engineering and Construction Management Project Updates 

 
 
4. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 
General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh stated that presentations regarding the proposed biennial 
budget for Fiscal Years 2021/22 and 2022/23 for the Regional Wastewater and Recycled Water 
programs and the proposed Ten Year Forecast for fiscal years 2022-2031 were shared with the 
Regional Committees. Representatives were asked to provide input by Friday, May 7. No comments 
have been received as of the time of this meeting. 
 
 
5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
There were no Committee member comments. 
 
 
6. COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
There were no Committee member requests for future agenda items.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

With no further business, Committee Chair Camacho adjourned the meeting at 10:50 a.m. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Denise Garzaro 
Board Secretary/Office Manager 
 

*A Municipal Water District 
 

APPROVED:   JUNE 9, 2021 



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

 
  
 

              1B 

 

           CONSENT 
                         ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 16, 2021

CCWRF Asset Management & Improvement Project - Addendum to the Facilities
Master Plan Program Environmental Impact Report

In March 2017, Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) certified the Facilities Master Plan
Program Environmental Impact Report (PEIR) which evaluated the potential environmental
impacts associated with all of IEUA’s Master Plans. Among the identified projects was Project
No. EN17006 at the Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF). The 2015/2016 Asset
Management Plan (AMP) provided the basic information used to evaluate the CCWRF
improvements in the PEIR. During design, additional asset improvements were deemed vital to
address critical replacements of gates and the bridge crane system at the tertiary treatment. Since
the tertiary treatment improvements were not included in the PEIR or the AMP, further
evaluation of the PEIR was needed to confirm compliance with CEQA.

Tom Dodson & Associates implemented a second-tier project evaluation and found the
evaluation does not alter the conclusions contained in the PEIR document; no further analysis of
the environmental impacts of the proposed modified project is required in a follow-on Negative
Declaration or Supplemental/Subsequent environmental impact report. The recommendation is
to adopt an Addendum to the certified PEIR to include the findings from the second-tier project
evaluation and certify the Addendum (please reference Attachment 2).

1. Adopt the Addendum to the Facilities Master Plan Program Environmental Impact Report
(SCH No. 2016061064) as the appropriate CEQA environmental determination for the CCWRF
Facility Asset Management and Improvement, Project No. EN17006; and

2. Authorize the certification of the Addendum documentation to be signed by the General
Manager.

EN17006/CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements

None.

1000 10900 595000 127156 EN17006

06/09/21Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N Y

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The CCWRF Asset Management and Improvement Project is consistent with the Agency’s
Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Water Quality objective that IEUA
will ensure that Agency systems are planned, constructed, and managed to protect public health,
the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

On March 15, 2017, the Board of Directors certified the final Program Environmental Impact
Report for the Asset Management Plan (FY 2015/16), Recycled Water Program Strategy (2015),
Amendment to the 2010 Recharge Master Plan Update (2013), Wastewater Facilities Master
Plan Update Report (2015), Integrated Water Resources Plan (2015) and Energy Management
Plan (2015) (collectively facilities master plans) and adoption of findings and statement of
overriding considerations.

The Facilities Master Plan Program Environmental Impact Report (SCH No. 2016061064) for
the CCWRF Facility Asset Management and Improvement Project

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation
Attachment 2 - Tom Dodson's Addendum to the Facilities Master Plan Program Environmental
Impact Report (SCH No. 2016061064) for the CCWRF Facility Asset Management and
Improvement Project

Addendum to

21136



 

 

Attachment 1 



CCWRF Asset Management & 
Improvement Project –

Addendum to the Facilities Master 
Plan Program Environmental Impact 

Report
Joel Ignacio, P.E.

Senior Engineer

June 16, 2021



2

Project Location

Lagoon

Tertiary 
Treatment

Aeration 
Basins

Secondary 
Clarifiers

Primary 
Clarifiers

Primary 
Treatment

HeadworksHeadworks

Blower Building

Tertiary Filters 



• Tertiary Filtration Improvements

• Aeration Blower Improvements 

• 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit 

• Odor Control System Improvements 

• Headworks Improvements 

3

Project Scope



• March 2017 IEUA certified Facilities Master Plan Program 
Environmental Impact Report (PEIR) and Asset 
Management Plan (AMP)

• Majority of CCWRF Improvement were in PEIR and AMP

• A second-tier evaluation for additional improvements

• Findings – no threshold exceeded 

• CEQA conclusions – Addendum stating findings

4

Project CEQA Evaluation



5

Recommendation

• Adopt the Addendum to the  Facilities Master Plan Program Environmental 
Impact Report (SCH No. 2016061064) as the appropriate CEQA 
environmental determination for the CCWRF Facility Asset Management and 
Improvement, Project No. EN17006; and 

• Authorize the certification of the Addendum documentation to be signed by 
the General Manager.

The CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements Package III Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of 
Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure the regional sewer system and 

treatment facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainably managed, and can 
accommodate changes in regional water use.



 

 

Attachment 2 



NOTICE OF DETERMINATION 

 
 
To: San Bernardino County     From: Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
 Clerk of the Board      6075 Kimball Avenue 
 385 North Arrowhead Avenue     Chino, CA 91708 
 San Bernardino, CA 92415      
   and 
 Office of Planning and Research 
 State Clearinghouse 
 1400 Tenth Street 
 Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
 
Subject:  Filing of Notice of Determination in compliance with Section 21108 or 21152 of the Public Resources Code. 

 
 
     Addendum to the Facilities Master Plan Program Environmental Impact Report for the 
 CCWRF Facility Asset Management and Improvement Project   
Project Title 
 
 
     SCH#2016061064 Mr. Pietro Cambiaso (909) 993-1639  
State Clearinghouse Number   Lead Agency Contact Person   Telephone Number 
 
 
Project Location 
The project area is located along the southern side of Chino Hills Parkway, east of the intersection of Chino 
Hills Parkway and Monte Vista Avenue, in the city of Chino, San Bernardino County, California.  The project 
consists of a field survey of approximately 3.1 acres of heavily altered land located within the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility.  The project area is on the north side of Chino 
Creek, south of Chino Hills Parkway, east of Monte Vista Avenue, and west of Telephone Avenue.   
 
 
Project Description 
In March 2017, IEUA certified the Facilities Master Plan Program Environmental Impact Report (PEIR). 
The PEIR evaluated the potential environmental impacts associated with all of IEUA’s Master Plans. 
Among the identified projects for consideration was a capital improvement project, Project No. EN17006, 
at Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF). The 2015/2016 Asset Management Plan (AMP) 
provided the basic information used to the evaluate the CCWRF improvements in the PEIR. During design, 
additional asset improvements were deemed vital to address critical replacements of gates and the bridge 
crane system for the tertiary treatment. Since the tertiary treatment improvements were not included in the 
PEIR or the AMP, further evaluation of the PEIR was needed to confirm compliance with CEQA. 
 
Tom Dodson & Associates implemented a second-tier project evaluation and found the evaluation does 
not alter the conclusions contained in the PEIR document, no further analysis of the environmental impacts 
of the proposed modified project is required in a follow-on Negative Declaration or Supple-
mental/Subsequent environmental impact report. The recommendation is to adopt an Addendum to the 
certified PEIR to include the findings from the second-tier project evaluation and certify the Addendum. 
  



Notice of Determination, page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
This is to advise that the    Inland Empire Utilities Agency     has approved the above described project on 

    ■ Lead Agency   ☐ Responsible Agency 

 
          and has made the following determination regarding the above described project: 
       (Date) 
 
 

1. The project [☐ will ■ will not] have a significant effect on the environment. 

2. ■ An Addendum to the previously adopted Facilities Master Plan Program Environmental Impact 

Report (#2016061064) was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. 

3. Mitigation measures [■ were ☐ were not] made a condition of the approval of this project. 

4. Mitigation measures from the original PEIR will be implemented in accordance with the approval of 

the project. 

5. A Statement of Overriding Considerations [■ was ☐ was not] adopted for this project. 

6. Findings [■ were ☐ were not] made pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. 

 
 
This is to certify that the Environmental Impact Report and record of project approval is available to the 
general public at: 
 
 
    Inland Empire Utilities Agency located at 6075 Kimball Avenue, Chino, CA 91708  
 
 
 
               
Signature      Title    Date 
 



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

1C 
           CONSENT 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 16, 2021

Ratification of a Change Order for the RP-1 Mechanical Restoration and Improvements
Project

On September 18, 2019, the IEUA Board awarded a construction contract to Kiewit
Infrastructure West Co., to perform work at Regional Water Recycling Plant No.1 (RP-1). The
involved replacing all mechanical (pumps, valves, piping, etc.) and electrical equipment (motor
control centers, breakers, conductors, etc.) in both of the conventional activated sludge pump
station buildings. During demolition they encountered an unexpected change in the field
conditions. The existing fiber-optic (FO) communication cables were routed through both
Motor Control Centers, and demolition could not continue until the FO cables were removed
and re-routed in the buildings. The FO cable is critical to plant operation, as it provides remote
visibility of the plant process equipment within the Secondary Clarifiers and Activated Sludge
systems through SCADA. Staff directed the contractor to implement the work in order not to
incur delay charges. Staff is therefore recommending a change order for the cost incurred by the
contractor to investigate, troubleshoot, and re-route the FO cables.

Staff requests ratification approval of this construction change order with Kiewit Infrastructure
West Co. in the amount of $121,869.34, increasing the contract from $6,783,342.15 to
$6,905,211.49 (approximately 1.8% increase).

1. Ratify a construction change order for the RP-1 Mechanical Restoration and Improvements,
Project No. EN17082, to Kiewit Infrastructure West Co., for the not-to-exceed amount of
$121,869.34, increasing the contract $6,783,342.15 to $6,905,211.49 (approximately 1.8%
increase); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the change order, subject to non-substantive
changes.

EN17082/RP-1 Mechanical Restoration and Improvements

None.

1000 127151 10800 590000 EN17082

06/09/21Engineering, Operations & Water Resources 

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

The RP-1 Mechanical Restoration and Improvements Project is consistent with IEUA's Business 
Goal of Wastewater Management specifically the Asset Management objective that IEUA will 
ensure the treatment facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, 
sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use.

On October 16, 2019, the Board of Directors approved a task order with Technical Systems, 
Inc., for programming services for the not-to-exceed amount of $221,715.
On September 18, 2019, the Board of Directors awarded a construction contract to Kiewit 
Infrastructure West, in the amount of $6,627,000 and approved an amendment to Stantec's 
contract for consultant engineering services for the not-to-exceed amount of $430,000.
On November 21, 2018, the Board of Directors approved an amendment to Stantec's contract for 
consultant engineering services for the not-to-exceed amount of $113,400.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation
Attachment 2 - Change Order to Kiewit Infrastructure West Co.

Environmental :
Categorical Exemption
CEQA identifies certain categories of projects as exempt from more detailed environmental 
review because these categories have been deemed to have no potential for significant impact on 
the environment. This project qualifies for a Categorical Exemption Class 1 as defined in 
Section 15301(b) of the State CEQA Guidelines.

21138



Attachment 1 



RP-1 Mechanical Restoration 
Ratification of a Construction Change Order

Project No. EN17082

Travis Sprague, PE

Principal Engineer

June 2021



Project Location

RAS Pump Station

RAS Pump Station

Thickened

Sludge Pumps

Digester Transfer 

Sludge Pumps

2



The Project

• Construction Contract Award 
September 2019

—Scope
• Replace all sludge pumps, scum 

pumps, and piping
• Upgrade inefficient motor drives
• Replace motor control centers
• Install sludge grinders

• Fiber Optic Change Order 

—Fiber Optic Cables ran through MCCs
—Re-routed Fiber Optic Cables
—Work essential to operations
—16-day delay on bypass pumping 

system

3



Project Budget and Schedule

Description Estimated Cost

Design Services $797,639
Design Contract  $583,287

IEUA Design Services  (5.0%) $214,352

Construction Services $1,115,605
Engineering Services During Construction (8%) $430,000

IEUA Construction Services (4.5%) $463,890

TSI Task Order $221,715

Construction $7,289,700
Construction $6,627,000

Contingency (10%) $662,700

Change Order $121,869

Total Change Orders (including this action item) $278,212

Remaining Contingency (Includes all CO’s) $384,488

Total Project Cost: $9,202,944
Total Project Budget: $10,646,000

Project Milestone Date

Construction
Original Construction Completion March 2021

Revised Construction Completion June 2021

4



Recommendation

• Ratify a construction change order for the RP-1 Mechanical Restoration and Improvements, 
Project No. EN17082, to Kiewit Infrastructure West Co., for the not-to-exceed amount of 
$121,869.34 (approximately 1.8% increase); and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the change order, subject to non-substantive 
changes.

The RP-1 Mechanical Restoration and Improvements Project is consistent with IEUA's Business Goal of Wastewater 
Management specifically the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure the treatment facilities are well maintained, 

upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use.

5



 

 

Attachment 2 















































 

 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT-C 
 
 
 

Management Approvals 
4 Pages 









 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

1D
           CONSENT 

ITEM 





https://www.dropbox.com/s/7jmyvcr1lcj1gg9/21127%20C.%20Earthwork%20and%20Infiltration%20Restoration%20Work%20at%208th%20Street%20Basin.pdf?dl=0


Contract Award – 8th Street Basin
Earthwork & Infiltration Restoration 

Andy Campbell, PG, CHG
GWR Coordinator / Hydrogeologist

June 16, 2021



• Infiltration restoration is needed to maintain flow of recharge 
water into the ground

• Infiltration rate has fallen over time from about 1.0 to less than 
0.1 feet per day

2

8th Street Basin

8th-S

8th-N

10

60

7th



3

The Infiltration Restoration Process

• Work Done By IEUA
—Drain by Gravity
—Dewatering by Pumping (separate contractor)
—Dry Out Floor (2 weeks)

• Work Done Through RFP
—Work 8th-South, then 8th-North
—Scrape Material from Side Slopes
—Scrape Material from Floor
—Haul Away Material
—Rip and Smooth the Basin Floor
—Trench for Level Sensor Conduit Repair



4

Phases – Gravity Draining, Dewatering,
& Floor Drying



5

Phase – Scrape Basin Sides and Floor

6/11/18 9:55 AM



• Haul Away Soil

6

Phases
• Rip & Smooth Floor

9/15/20 11:19 AM 9/29/20 9:47 AM



• Seven bids were received on May 17, 2021

• IEUA and CBWM will cost share the 8th Street Basin work using the 
basin’s Pro Rata for Fiscal Year 21/22 (IEUA 71% and CBWM 29%)

7

Contractor Selection

Bidder Bid

Jeremy Harris Construction, Inc, $117,708.00 
JCE Equipment Inc. $133,017.50 
Intravaia Rock & Sand, Inc. $243,666.50 
Hera General Engineering $267,932.00 
Scorpion Backhoe, Inc. $321,662.00 
Sukut Construction, LLC $994,900.00 
C.P. Construction Co., Inc $1,249,400.00 



8

Recommendation

1. Approve the award of contract 4600003036 for Jeremy Harris
Construction, Inc. for the 8th Street Basin Earthwork & Infiltration
Restoration Services for a not-to-exceed amount of $117,708.00.

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.

The Infiltration Restoration Project is consistent with IEUA’s business goal of Water Reliability 
to develop and implement an integrated water resource management plan.



Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

2A 
           ACTION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 16, 2021

RMPU Project Construction Contract Award

On May 2017, Chino Basin Watermaster (CBWM) and IEUA executed a cost sharing 
agreement, Task Order No. 9, to implement the Wineville groundwater recharge improvements 
project. These improvements will provide approximately 2,921 acre-feet per year (AFY) of 
captured stormwater and allow 2,905 AFY of recycled water to be recharged. On April 8, 2021, 
six bids were received and MNR Construction, Inc., was the lowest, responsible, responsive 
bidder with a bid price of $15,480,880 which is approximately $3 million higher than the 
Engineer's Estimate of $11,498,545. IEUA and CBWM staff reviewed the bid and found it to be 
reasonable based on the rising material costs as a result of the COVID 19 Pandemic. CBWM has 
approved the updated cost sharing agreement at their May 27th, 2021, board meeting.

Staff requests the Board: (1) augment IEUA's budget for RW15006 from $19,150,000 to
$24,004,424 (25% increase) in the Groundwater Capital fund to address the increased bid price;
(2) amend the agreement with CBWM to update the cost share responsibilities; (3) amend the
contract with Carollo Engineers to provide continued engineering support during construction;
and (4) approve the construction contract with MNR Construction.

1. Approve the budget augmentation in RW15003.00 from $19,150,000 to $24,004,424;
2. Approve the amendment to IEUA and CBWM’s Cost Sharing Agreement, Task Order No.9,
with Project No. RW15003.06;
3. Approve the contract amendment for engineering support services during construction of the
Project No. RW15003.06 to Carollo Engineers, Inc., for an amount of $397,977, increasing the
contract's not-to-exceed amount to $2,158,230 (a 23% increase);
4. Award the construction contract for the Project No. RW15003.06 to MNR Construction, Inc.
in the amount of $15,480,880; and
5. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts, subject to non-substantive changes.

$ 4,854,424

RW15003.05/RP3 Basin
RW15003.06/Wineville, Jurupa, and Force Main

For the following projects, RW15003.05 & RW15003.06, approximately $10,833,381 in grants
were awarded (49% of the project budget). Watermaster’s cost share is $10,846,828 (49% of the
total budget) which will be funded by $11,742,550 in a SRF loan. IEUA’s cost share is
$360,043 (2% of the project budget).

1000 10300 126100 4235000 RW15003

06/09/21
06/09/21

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Finance & Administration
Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N Y

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The projects under the 2013 RMPU which include the Wineville, Jurupa and Force Main are
consistent with the IEUA's Business Goal of Water Reliability, specifically the Groundwater
Recharge objective that IEUA will maximize groundwater recharge projects in the region
through strategic, cost-effective partnerships, and development.

On June 21, 2017, the Board of Directors awarded consulting engineering services for all RMPU
projects under RW15003.00, to Carollo Engineers, Inc. for the not-to-exceed amount of
$1,510,628.
On May 17, 2017, the Board of Directors approved Task Order No. 9 as part of the July 2014
Master Agreement between CBWM and IEUA to implement the design and construction efforts
of multiple RMPU projects.

The RMPU Project was under a comprehensive Program Environmental Impact Report which
the Board adopted as complete on March 15, 2017. Within this report specific mitigation
measures are a part of the Project that will be implemented under the attached Mitigation
Measures and Reporting Program (MMRP).

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation
Attachment 2 - Amendment to IEUA and CBWM's Task Order No. 9
Attachment 3 - Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. 4600002324 with Carollo Engineers, Inc.
Attachment 4 - Construction Contract with MNR Construction, Inc.

Program Environmental Impact Report (Finding of Consistency)

21137



 

 

Attachment 1 



Recharge Master Plan Update Project
Construction Contract Award

Joel Ignacio, P.E.

Senior Engineer

June 16, 2021



2

Project Location

Basin Projects Additional Recharge Goal

Stormwater Recycled Water

San Sevaine Basin 642 4,100

Lower Day Basin 993 -

Victoria Basin 75 120

Montclair Basins 96 -

Wineville, Jurupa, RP3 Basins 2,921 2,905

Total: 4,727 7,125



3

Project Background/Scope

Project Benefit:

• Increase stormwater recharge to 2,921 acre-feet per year

• Increased recycled water 2,905 acre-feet per year (with RP-3)

Installation of a 

stormwater force main 

system (pump station)

New Recharge Facility 

Increase stormwater diversion

Added recharge basin



4

Contractor Selection

• January 11, 2021, released invitation to bids to 8 prequalified bidders

• April 8, 2021, 6 bids were received

• Engineer's estimate $11,498,545

• Staff reviewed the bid and found it to be reasonable based on the rising material costs as a 

result of the market conditions and the COVID 19 Pandemic.

Bidder Bid Amount

MNR Construction, Inc $15,480,880

J.F. Shea Construction, Inc. $15,842,000

J.R. Filanc Construction Company, Inc. $15,954,330

Ferreira Construction Co, Inc $16,546,362

Norstar Plumbing and Engineering, Inc. $17,276,000

W.A. Rasic Construction Company, Inc. $24,888,000



5

Amendment to CBWM/IEUA Cost Sharing 

Phase Start Finish Projected Cost
Project Development 7/1/2014 12/17/2014 $14,600 
Pre-Design 12/18/2014 11/16/2016 $407,900 
Environmental Impact 12/18/2014 4/20/2016 $179,500 
Permits 12/18/2014 1/8/2018 $52,400 
Design 6/22/2017 12/31/2020 $1,372,500 
Bid and Award 1/1/2021 6/15/2021 $15,000
Construction 6/22/2021 8/21/2022 $19,998,352 

Total $22,040,252 

Available Grants

Stormwater 
Distribution 

System/Wineville 
Basin/Jurupa Basin

RP-3 Basin Total

SWRCB - Storm Water Grant Program $8,994,167 $809,214 $9,803,381 

USBR- Drought Resiliency - $290,000 $290,000 
USBR- Secure Water Act $740,000 - $740,000

Total $9,734,167 $1,099,214 $10,833,381

CBWM/IEUA/Grant

Stormwater 
Distribution 

System/Wineville 
Basin/Jurupa Basin

RP-3 Basin Total

Watermaster $10,486,785 $360,043 $10,846,828
IEUA - $360,043 $360,043
Grants $9,734,167 $1,099,214 $10,833,381

Total $20,220,952 $1,819,300 $22,040,252

Grant Increase of $2.2 Million

Total Project Budget Breakdown within Task Order Total Available Grants within Task Order 

Task Order’s Revised Cost Share Breakdown to Project



6

Project Budget & Schedule
Description Cost

Design Services $1,960,940 

Preliminary Design Contract (actual cost) $269,300 

Design Contract (actual cost) $1,500,000 

Environmental/Permits/Bid/Admin (actual costs) $191,640 

Construction Services $1,231,044 

Design Consultant Construction Services (actual) (this action) $397,977 

IEUA Construction Services (projected) $833,067

Construction $17,028,968 

Construction Contract (MNR Construction) (this action) $15,480,880 

Contingency (10%) $1,548,088 

Total Project Cost (for RW15003.06): $20,220,952 

Total Project Cost (for RW15003.05 & RW15003.06) $22,040,252 

Current Budget (for RW15003.00): $19,150,000  

Augmented Budget (for RW15003.00) $24,004,424

Project Milestone Date

Construction
Contract Award June 2021

Project Completion August 2022

• Above budget includes the requested Carollo amendment for engineering services during construction



7

Recommendation

• Approve budget augmentation to RW15003.00 for a 25% increase from $19,150,000 to
$24,004,424

• Approve amendment to IEUA and CBWM’s Cost Sharing Agreement, Task Order No.9,
with Project No. RW15003.06;

• Approve contract amendment for engineering support services during construction of the
Project No. RW15003.06 to Carollo Engineers, Inc. for an amount of $397,977, increasing
the contract’s not-to-exceed amount to $2,158,230 (a 23% increase);

• Award the construction contract for the Project No. RW15003.06 to MNR Construction, Inc.
in the amount of $15,480,880; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts, subject to non-substantive
changes.

The RMPU Project is consistent with the IEUA’s Business Goal of Water Reliability specifically the Groundwater 

Recharge objective that IEUA will maximize groundwater recharge projects in the region through strategic, cost-effective 

partnerships, and development.



 

 

Attachment 2 



FIRST AMENDMENT 
to 

TASK ORDER NO. 9 
RMPU IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 23a 

under the  
MASTER AGREEMENT REGARDING THE  

MANAGEMENT OF COLLABORATIVE RECHARGE PROJECTS 
between 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY 
and 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

First Amendment Task Order No. 9  Page 1 of 3 
RMPU IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 23a 

This First Amendment to Task Order No. 9 is made and entered into as of the ____ day of May, 
2021 by and between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) and the Chino Basin Watermaster 
(Watermaster) (each a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”).   

RECITALS 

A. Task Order No. 9 for the RMPU IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 23a (the “Task Order”) was approved
by IEUA and Watermaster on May 25th, 2017.

B. The recently received, higher bid prices for the construction of the RMPU IMPROVEMENT
under PROJECT ID 23a, the proposed Wineville Pumps Station to Jurupa, the expansion of the
Jurupa’s Pumps stations to RP-3, and the approved recharge improvements at Wineville,
Jurupa and RP3 Basins (collectively, the “Project”) necessitates a change to the Project’s total
budget from $16.48 million to $22.04 million.

C. United States Department of Interior’s Bureau of Reclamation awarded the proposed
Wineville Pumps Station to Jurupa, the expansion of the Jurupa’s Pumps stations to RP-3, and
the recharge improvements at Wineville and Jurupa with a grant of $740,000 through Section
9504(a) of the Secure Water Act, Public Law 111-11 (Agreement Number R18AP000777).

C. IEUA and Watermaster wish to amend that Task Order to reflect the necessary budget
increase and the grant award, and to adjust the reimbursement schedule under which
Watermaster provides its share of the costs to IEUA.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED TO AMEND THE TASK ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Section 2 of the Task Order titled SCOPE shall be amended to read:

The activities to be undertaken pursuant to this Task Order include project development to
properly establish project's scope and schedule, preliminary design evaluation to define the
extent of the upgrades of each site, design for the preparation of the construction plans and
specifications for the upgrades, permitting and CEQA review for each site proposed for

ATTACHMENT 2



First Amendment Task Order No. 9  Page 2 of 4 
RMPU IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 23a 

upgrades, bid/award of the construction contract to the lowest responsible/responsive 
bidder, and the construction of the improvements. The following is projected cost breakdown 
and schedule for each of the project phases:  

Phase Start Finish Projected Cost 
Project Development 7/1/2014 12/17/2014 $14,600 
Pre-Design 12/18/2014 11/16/2016 $407,900 
Environmental Impact 12/18/2014 4/20/2016 $179,500 
Permits 12/18/2014 1/8/2018 $52,400 
Design 6/22/2017 12/31/2020 $1,372,500 
Bid and Award 1/1/2021 6/15/2021 $15,000 
Construction 6/22/2021 8/21/2022 $19,998,352 

Total $22,040,252 
As of the date upon which the Parties enter into this Task Order, the project development, 
pre-design and environmental impact phases of the Project have been completed and the 
Parties acknowledge that all funds for these phases have been expended and reimbursed, as 
applicable. The Task Order does not create any further rights or responsibilities for either of 
the Parties with respect to these phases of the Project. 

2. Section 5 of the Task Order titled BUDGET AND COST ALLOCATION shall be amended to
read:

Unless the scope of work is changed and an increase is authorized by the Parties, the budget
for the activities to  be undertaken  pursuant to this Task Order is twenty-two   million forty
thousand two hundred fifty-two dollars ($22,040,252) ("Budget"), of which $10,833,381 is
available in grant funds. The grant funds available for each phase of the Project are as follows:

Available Grants 

Stormwater 
Distribution 

System/Winevill
e Basin/Jurupa 

Basin 

RP-3 Basin Total 

State Water Resources Control 
Board - Storm Water Grant 
Program 

$8,994,167 $809,214 $9,803,381 

United States Department of 
Interior Bureau of Reclamation 
- Drought Resiliency

- $290,000 $290,000 

United States Department of 
Interior Bureau of Reclamation 
- Secure Water Act

$740,000 - $740,000 

Total $9,734,167 $1,099,214 $10,833,381 



First Amendment Task Order No. 9  Page 3 of 4 
RMPU IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 23a 

The Parties agree that the Budget less the grant funds is shared consistent with the 
methodology described in Peace II Agreement Section 8.l(b), and that IEUA's share of the 
costs is based on a 50% allocation of the costs of those portions of the project for which there 
is a recycled water component. The Budget includes IEUA capital, administrative, and 
overhead expenses associated with IEUA's provision of the services described in Section 3 
above.  The total budget allocation by Party and project component is as follows: 

CBWM/IEUA/Grant 

Stormwater 
Distribution 

System/Wineville 
Basin/Jurupa 

Basin 

RP-3 Basin Total 

Watermaster $10,486,785 $360,043 $10,846,828 
IEUA - $360,043 $360,043 
Grants $9,734,167 $1,099,214 $10,833,381 

Total $20,220,952 $1,819,300 $22,040,252 

The Parties shall budget, pursuant to their own budget mechanism and in accordance with 
the May 26th, 2016 First Amendment to the Master Agreement Regarding the Management 
of Collaborative Recharge Projects between IEUA and Watermaster. 

3. Section 6 of the Task Order titled TOTAL BUDGETED COST shall be amended to read:

The Parties agree to pay their respective portion of the Budget, less the available grant
funding. The parties shall not be required to pay more than $11,206,871 (“Total Budgeted
Cost”).

4. Section 7 of the Task Order titled MAXIMUM COSTS TO WATERMASTER shall be amended to
read:

The costs to be required of Watermaster shall not exceed its share of the Total Budgeted
Cost, as shown in Section 5 above, or $10,846,828.

5. Section 8 of the Task Order titled MAXIMUM COSTS TO IEUA shall be amended to read:

The costs to be required of IEUA shall not exceed its share of the Total Budgeted Cost, as
shown in Section 5 above, or $360,043.

(The remaining balance of this page is left intentionally blank) 



First Amendment Task Order No. 9  Page 4 of 4 
RMPU IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 23a 

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS SHALL REMAIN UNCHANGED. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have caused this Amendment to be entered into as of 
the day and year written above. 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER: INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: 

Peter Kavounas, P.E.  
General Manager 

Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E. 
General Manager 



 

 

Attachment 3 



  Contract Amendment 4600002324-004  (RW)   Page 1 of 2 
  05/26/2021 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER:  4600002324-004 

 FOR 

        ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR 

 RECHARGE MASTER PLAN UPDATES, 

PROJECTS RW15003, RW15003.06 & RW15004 

THIS CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOUR is made and entered into this _____ day of ___________, 2021, 
by and between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, organized and existing in 
the County of San Bernardino under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (hereinafter 
referred to interchangeably as “IEUA” and “Agency”) and Carollo Engineers, Inc. with offices located in 
Los Angeles, California (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”) for Engineering Design Services required  
in support of Project No. RW15003.00, Child Project RW15003.06, and Project No. RW15004.00, 
revising the Contract as herein amended:   

SECTION THREE, SCOPE OF WORK AND SERVICES, IS REVISED TO ADD THE 

FOLLOWING PARAGRAPH:  Consultant shall furnish professional consulting services as 

stipulated within Consultant’s proposal dated April 14, 2021, referenced herein, attached hereto, 

and made a part hereof as Exhibit 4.  

SECTION FIVE, COMPENSATION, IS REVISED TO ADD THE FOLLOWING PARAGRAPH:  

As compensation for the additional work performed under this Contract Amendment Four, Agency 
shall pay Consultant a NOT-TO EXCEED maximum of $2,158,230.00, which includes an 
increase of $397,977.00 as per Exhibit 4. 

SECTION SEVEN, GRANT FUNDED PROJECTS, REMAINS IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. 

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN UNCHANGED. 

 (Signature Page Immediately Follows) 



  Contract Amendment 4600002324-004  (RW)   Page 2 of 2 
  05/26/2021 

Witnesseth, that the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed as per the above 

amendment items, and in doing so have caused this document to become incorporated into the 

contract documents. 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY:  CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC.: 
(a Municipal Water District) 

 __________________________   ________ 
 Eric M Mills, P.E.                               (Date)  

       Senior Vice President 

___________________________   ________ 
Shivaji Deshmukh                               (Date)    
General Manager    
  

 __________________________   ________ 
 Miko Aivazian, P.E.                             (Date) 

   Vice President   

   [ Balance Of This Page Intentionally Left Blank ] 



Exhibit 4



  

 3400 Central Avenue, Suite 205, Riverside, California  92506 

 P. 951.776.3955  F. 951.776.4207 

 

|20220224_RMPU_WBJFMRP3_ESDC 

April ��, 
�
� 

 

Mr. Joel Ignacio, PE, Senior Engineer 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

�� ! Kimball Avenue 

Chino, CA (� �) 

Subject: Wineville Basin, Jurupa Force Main Improvements Project 

Proposal to Provide Engineering Services During Construction (ESDC) 

 

Dear Mr. Ignacio: 

The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) will be sending out for construction bids the Wineville Basin and 

Jurupa Force Main Improvements Project.  At your request, Carollo Engineers, Inc. (Carollo) is submitting 

this proposal to provide Engineering Services During Construction (ESDC) for the subject project. This 

project is part of the Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU) Projects and has been designed by Carollo. 

Based on the construction bid documents, we understand that the construction is scheduled to begin in May 

of 
�
� and complete in November of 
�

.  The completion shall be within �
! calendar days from the date 

from when the Notice‐To‐Proceed is given to the Contractor. These dates are important in that they were 

used to estimate the duration of some of the tasks below and that we are submitting our proposal to cover 

the duration of the construction. It is important to recognize that the estimate below is based on the 

estimated level of effort. Several of the tasks depend on the duration of the contract and the efficacy of the 

selected contractor. While Carollo has no influence over those elements, we have made estimates based 

either on your email request or on our past experience. Should the level of effort be less than estimated, the 

result would be a surplus budget at the conclusion of the project. The following is a summary of the 

proposed Scope of Work, assumptions, and Fee Estimated based on this level of effort: 

TASK 1 – PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING 

A. Attend Pre-Construction Meeting 

The purpose of this meeting is to review, with the contractor, IEUA’s expectations of their work, IEUA’s 

procedures for submittals, Request for Information (RFIs), Request for Deviations (RFDs), as well as timely 

submission of work. This meeting will also give the Contractor the opportunity to present their schedule for 

completing the work within the timeframe of the construction contract. 

TASK 2 – REVIEW SHOP DRAWINGS 

A. Submittal Reviews 

Carollo will review each shop drawing and working drawings of manufacturers and contractors for 

substantial conformity with the contract documents. We will coordinate the submittal reviews closely with 

IEUA throughout the construction to ensure the conformance with bid documents. For estimating purposes, 

we have included a total of one‐hundred (���) submittals and resubmittals for this project. Carollo will also 

prepare a tracking log for the contractor submittals. If IEUA decides to review and respond to a portion of 

the submittals, Carollo will not track the contractor submittals nor review IEUA’s. If requested by IEUA, 

Carollo will review IEUA’s response, but it will be counted toward the total budget of submittals. 



Mr. Joel Ignacio  

April ��, 
�
� 

 
Page 
 

 

carollo.com 

TASK 3 – REVIEW/RESPOND TO REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION (RFIs) 

A. RFI Responses 

We will review RFIs for completeness and for contract conformance. RFIs that do not satisfy the 

specifications will be returned to the Contractor with a copy to IEUA.  

 

Carollo’s Project Manager, Miko Aivazian will check the response from our engineering support staff and 

with the design engineer to make certain that the answer to the RFI is complete and that it does not result in 

a change to the contract. If it appears that a change is required, it will be discussed with IEUA to determine 

the most appropriate course of action. 

We will perform these reviews in a timely fashion and in an effort to facilitate the completion of the overall 

schedule. For estimating purposes, we have assumed a total of forty (��) RFI’s to be responded for this 

project. Carollo will also prepare a tracking log for the RFIs submitted by the contractor. If IEUA decides to 

review and respond to a portion of RFI’s, Carollo will not track the contractor submittals nor review IEUA’s 

response. If requested by IEUA, Carollo will review IEUA’s response, but it will be counted toward the total 

budget of RFIs. 

TASK 4 – REQUESTS FOR DEVIATION (RFDs) 

A. RFDs Reviews and Responses 

Carollo will attend meetings and negotiations with the contractor involving change orders. We will provide 

cost estimating expertise to help evaluate change order costs. For estimating purposes, we have included a 

total of five (!) RFDs to be responded for this project. Our scope of work does not include any time for owner 

initiated changes. If IEUA decides to review and respond to a portion of the RFDs; Carollo will not track the 

contractor submittals nor review IEUA’s response. If requested by IEUA, Carollo will review IEUA’s response, 

but it will be counted toward the total budget of RFDs. 

TASK 5 – AS-BUILT PLANS 

A. Prepare As-Built Plans 

At the completion of construction, Carollo will prepare a set of as‐built plans. The as‐built plans will include 

changes made to the original plans and specifications during construction including RFI changes. IEUA will 

provide a set of contractor’s marked up plans to Carollo to be included in the As‐Built plans. Our proposal 

assumes the as‐built plans will be prepared immediately (within two to three months) after the completion 

of construction and after the receipt of the Contractor’s and Construction Manager’s marked‐up plan sets. 

Carollo must receive the as‐builts within 
‐months of the final acceptance. 

TASK 6 – MEETINGS AND SITE VISITS 

A. Attend Meetings 

Carollo will attend the following meeting during the construction phase of the project: 

• One Kickoff Meeting (� hours per site including site visits) 

• Weekly conference call meetings (assume  � calls, one hour each) 

• Site visits (assume � total) 

Carollo’s scope of work does not include preparation of meeting agendas and meeting minutes. 



Mr. Joel Ignacio  

April ��, 
�
� 

 
Page ? 

 

carollo.com 

TASK 7 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND QUALITY CONTROL 

A. Project Management 

This task addresses the management responsibilities associated with proper scheduling, budget control, 

invoice preparation and coordination with IEUA. Carollo’s project manager will review the status of budget, 

schedule and relevant project issues together on a bi‐weekly basis. Our project manager will provide project 

status updates via email to IEUA’s designated project manager on a bi‐weekly basis.  These bi‐weekly status 

updates will be used to confirm work progress, identify critical information needs, and where appropriate 

alert IEUA to any potential issues which may impact the project scope, schedule or budget. These bi‐weekly 

project status updates will be supplemented with monthly project status reports that will be prepared and 

distributed along with Carollo’s invoices.   

B. Technical Review and Quality Control 

Carollo will provide quality control (QC) reviews through the course of the project consistent with IEUA’s 

policies. Our QC and quality management procedures establish and maintain a structure for providing 

reviews of all work products and adherence to industry design standards.  

All work product deliverables, including detailed checking of work by in‐house staff will be reviewed prior to 

submittal to IEUA.  

 

Table � – Fee Estimate, on the following page, shows our estimated fee for the services described above. 

The requested fee for the above listed scope of work, amount is B?( ,(  .  

Carollo appreciates the opportunity to work with IEUA on this important project. Should you have any 

questions, please contact Miko Aivazian at (�
�) ? (‐
? �. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

 

Miko Aivazian, PE Eric Mills, PE  

Senior Project Manager Senior Vice President 

Vice President   Client Services Director 

 

 

 

cc: Matt Huckaby, PE 

 



Mr. Joel Ignacio 

April ��, 
�
� 

Page � 

carollo.com 

Table � ‐ Fee Estimate 

Hourly Billing Rate $273 $230 $188 $142 $108

Task 

No.
TASK DESCRIPTION

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l

T
e
c
h

n
ic

ia
n

C
le

ri
c
a
l

1.0 Pre-Construction Meeting 4 4 0 0 2 10  $   2,228  $   130  $   200  $   20  $   2,578 

A Attend a Pre-Construction Meeting 4 4 2 10 2,228$    130$    200$    20$    2,578$    

2.0 Review Shop Drawings 80 300 400 80 16 876  $   179,128  $   11,388  $   1,500  $   150  $   192,166 

A Review Submittals (assume 100 submittals and resubmittals) 80 300 400 80 16 876 179,128$    11,388$    1,500$    150$    192,166$    

3.0 Review and Respond to RFIs 40 80 120 40 16 296  $   59,288  $   3,848  $   600  $   60  $   63,796 

A Review and Respond to RFIs (assume 40 RFIs) 40 80 120 40 16 296 59,288$    3,848$    600$    60$    63,796$    

4.0 Request for Deviations (RFDs) 24 16 0 0 2 42  $   10,448  $   546  $   400  $   40  $   11,434 

A Review and Respond to RFDs (assume 5 RFDs) 24 16 2 42 10,448$    546$    400$    40$    11,434$    

5.0 As-Built Plans 16 40 0 120 4 180  $   31,040  $   2,340  $   1,500  $   150  $   35,030 

A Prepare As-Built Plans 16 40 120 4 180 31,040$    2,340$    1,500$    150$    35,030$    

6.0 Meetings and Site Visits 80 100 24 0 1 205  $   49,460  $   2,665  $   1,500  $   150  $   53,775 

A Meetings and Site Visits 80 100 24 1 205 49,460$    2,665$    1,500$    150$    53,775$    

7.0 Project Management and QA/QC 64 56 16 0 20 156  $   35,520  $   2,028  $   1,500  $   150  $   39,198 

A Project Management 40 40 16 16 112 24,856$    1,456$    1,000$    100$    27,412$    

B Technical Review and QA/QC 24 16 4 44 10,664$    572$    500$    50$    11,786$    

308 596 560 240 61 1,765 367,112$   22,945$   7,200$   720$   397,977$   

 T
O

T
A

L
 H

O
U

R
S

 

 L
A

B
O

R
 C

O
S

T

 P
ro

je
c
t 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

 E
x
p

e
n

s
e
 [

P
E

C
E

] 

($
1
3
.0

0
 p

e
r 

la
b

o
r 

h
o

u
r)

 

 O
T

H
E

R
 D

IR
E

C
T

 C
O

S
T

S
 

 M
a
rk

u
p

 o
n

 O
D

C
s
 a

n
d

 

S
u

b
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
n

ts
 

 T
O

T
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

  
F

E
E

 

TOTAL 



Attachment 4 



CONTRACT  

RECHARGE MASTER PLAN UPDATE (RMPU) BASIN IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT JURUPA 
BASIN, WINEVILLE BASIN, FORCE MAIN, Project No. RW15003.06. 

Page 1 of 3 

CONTRACT 
 

 

 

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this day of June, 2021, by 
and between MNR Construction Inc., hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR," and 
The Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, located in San Bernardino 
County, California, hereinafter referred to as "IEUA". 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
That for and in consideration of the promises and agreements hereinafter made and 
exchanged, IEUA and the CONTRACTOR agree as follows: 
 

A. CONTRACTOR agrees to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner, all Work 
required under these Bid Documents FOR 
RECHARGE MASTER PLAN UPDATE (RMPU) BASIN IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
JURUPA BASIN, WINEVILLE BASIN, FORCE MAIN, Project No. RW15003.06., in 
accordance with the Bid Documents, and to furnish at their own expense, all labor, 
materials, equipment, tools, and services necessary, except such materials, equipment, 
and services as may be stipulated in said Bid Documents to be furnished by IEUA, and 
to do everything required by this Contract and the said Bid Documents. 
 

B. For furnishing all said labor, materials, equipment, tools, and services, furnishing and 
removing all plant, temporary structures, tools and equipment, and doing everything 
required by this Contract and said Bid Documents; also for all loss and damage arising 
out of the nature of the Work aforesaid, or from the action of the elements, or from any 
unforeseen difficulties which may arise during the prosecution of the Work until its 
acceptance by IEUA, and for all risks of every description connected with the Work; also 
for all expenses resulting from the suspension or discontinuance of Work, except as in 
the said Bid Documents are expressly stipulated to be borne by IEUA; and for 
completing the Work in accordance with the requirements of said Bid Documents, IEUA 
will pay and said CONTRACTOR shall receive, in full compensation therefore, the 
price(s) set forth in this Contract. 
 

C. That IEUA will pay the CONTRACTOR progress payments and the final payment, in 
accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, with warrants drawn on the 
appropriate fund or funds as required, at the prices bid in the Bidding and Contract 
Requirements, Section C - Bid Forms and accepted by IEUA, and set forth in this below. 
 
Total Bid Price  
 
$15,480,880 dollars (Fifteen million four hundred eighty thousand eight hundred 
eighty dollars and zero Cents). 
 
 



CONTRACT  

RECHARGE MASTER PLAN UPDATE (RMPU) BASIN IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT JURUPA 
BASIN, WINEVILLE BASIN, FORCE MAIN, Project No. RW15003.06. 

Page 2 of 3  

D. IEUA hereby employs the CONTRACTOR to perform the Work according to the terms of 
this Contract for the above-mentioned price(s), and agrees to pay the same at the time, 
in the manner, and upon the conditions stipulated in the said Bid Documents; and the 
said parties for themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns, do hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants herein contained. 
 

E. The Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Forms, Information Required of 
Bidder, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, Contractor’s License Declaration, 
Specifications, Drawings, all General Conditions Special Conditions and all Project 
Requirements, and all Addenda issued by IEUA with respect to the foregoing prior to the 
opening of bids, are hereby incorporated in and made part of this Contract, as if fully set 
forth. 
 

F. The CONTRACTOR agrees to commence Work under this Contract on or before the 
date to be specified in a written "Notice To Proceed" and to complete said Work to the 
satisfaction of IEUA four hundred twenty-five (425) calendar days after award of the 
Contract. All Work shall be completed before final payment is made. 
 

G. Time is of the essence on this Contract. 
 

H. CONTRACTOR agrees that in case the Work is not completed before or upon the 
expiration of the Contract Time, damage will be sustained by IEUA, and that it is and will 
be impracticable to determine the actual damage which IEUA will sustain in the event 
and by reason of such delay, and it is therefore agreed that the CONTRACTOR shall 
pay to IEUA the amounts as set forth in General Conditions, Section C – Changes to the 
Contract for each day of delay, which shall be the period between the expiration of the 
Contract Time and the date of final acceptance by IEUA, as liquidated damages and not 
as a penalty. It is further agreed that the amount stipulated for liquidated damages per 
day of delay is a reasonable estimate of the damages that would be sustained by IEUA, 
and the CONTRACTOR agrees to pay such liquidated damages as herein provided. In 
case the liquidated damages are not paid, the CONTRACTOR agrees that IEUA may 
deduct the amount thereof from any money due or that may become due to the 
CONTRACTOR by progress payments or otherwise under the Contract, or if said 
amount is not sufficient, recover the total amount. 
 

I. In addition to the liquidated damages, which may be imposed if the CONTRACTOR fails 
to complete the Work within the time agreed upon, IEUA may also deduct from any sums 
due or to become due to the CONTRACTOR, penalties and fines for violations of 
applicable local, state, and federal law. 
 

J. That the CONTRACTOR shall carry Workers' Compensation Insurance and require all 
subcontractors to carry Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by the California 
Labor Code. 
 

K. That the CONTRACTOR shall have furnished, prior to execution of the Contract, two 
bonds approved by IEUA, one in the amount of one hundred (100) percent of 

the Contract Price, to guarantee the faithful performance of the Work, and one in the 
amount of one hundred (100) percent of the Contract Price to guarantee payment of all 
claims for labor and materials furnished. 



CONTRACT  

RECHARGE MASTER PLAN UPDATE (RMPU) BASIN IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT JURUPA 
BASIN, WINEVILLE BASIN, FORCE MAIN, Project No. RW15003.06. 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
L. The CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold IEUA and its 

employees, agents, officers, directors, servants and volunteers free and harmless from 
any and all liability, claims, judgments, costs and demands, including demands arising 
from injuries or death of persons (including employees of IEUA and the CONTRACTOR) 
and damage to property, arising directly or indirectly out of the obligation herein 
undertaken or out of the operations conducted by the CONTRACTOR, its employees 
agents, representatives or subcontractors under or  in connection  with this Contract  to 
the extent permitted by law. 
 
The CONTRACTOR further agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, provide 
defense for and defend any such claims, demands or suit at the sole expense of the 
CONTRACTOR. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The CONTRACTOR and the General Manager of Inland 
Empire Utilities Agency*, thereunto duly authorized, have caused the names of said 
parties to be affixed hereto, each in duplicate, the day and year first above written. 
 

M. The CONTRACTOR, by signing the contract does swear under penalty of perjury that no 
more than one final unappeasable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court has 
been issued against the CONTRACTOR within the immediately preceding two-year 
period because of the CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with an order of a Federal 
court which orders the CONTRACTOR to comply with an order of the National Labor 
Relations Board (Public Contract Code 10296). 

 
 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, CONTRACTOR 

San Bernardino County, California   

By  By  

 Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E. 
General Manager 

 Robert Vasilj 
President 

 
                              

 

 

* A Municipal Water District 



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

2B 
           ACTION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 16, 2021

RP-4 Process Improvements Change Order

A Preliminary Design Report (PDR) was prepared in 2018 to address various deficiencies
throughout Regional Plant No.4 (RP-4). The engineer's estimate exceeded the project budget;
therefore, various scope items were removed, including the aeration blowers replacement. The
remaining scope was funded through two projects: RP-4 Process Improvements and RP-4
Primary Clarifier Rehabilitation. On February 17, 2020, Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA)
awarded a construction contract to W.M. Lyles Co. (WML) for both projects. WML's bid was
lower than the engineer's estimate, resulting in a surplus of the combined total project budget.
Prior to bid opening, a new project, RP-4 Process Improvements Phase II, was funded to address
the omitted PDR scope. The existing aeration blowers have multiple deficiencies, including:
different manufactures and sizes, a 33 years old blower, limited redundancy, inefficient
technology, and a history of failures during summer months. The surplus of the combined total
project budget allowed Staff to evaluate alternative project delivery methods to replace the
aeration blowers: change order through WML or expediting a new project. A change order
would save IEUA $1.3 million and eight months of the project schedule. Staff requests approval
of this construction change order with WML, in the amount of $2,627,436, increasing the
contract from $10,553,000 to $13,180,436 (approximately 24.9% increase).

1. Approve a construction change order for the RP-4 Process Improvements, Project No.
EN17110, to W.M. Lyles Co., for the not-to-exceed amount of $2,627,436, increasing the
contract from $10,553,000 to $13,180,436 (approximately 24.9% increase);

2. Approve a budget transfer from the RP-4 Primary Clarifier Rehabilitation, Project EN17043,
to the RP-4 Process Improvements, Project EN17110, in amount of $2,500,000; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the change order and budget transfer, subject to
non-substantive changes.

$ 2,500,000

EN17110/RP-4 Process Improvments
EN17043/RP-4 Primary Clarification Rehabilitation

If approved, the total project budget transfer and a FY 20/21 and 21/22 budget transfer for the
RP-4 Process Improvements, Project No. EN17110, will be $2,500,000 in the Wastewater
(10900) Capital Fund.

1000 127154 10800 590000 EN17043/EN17110

06/09/21
06/09/21

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources 

Finance & Administration
Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N Y

127154 10800 5900001000

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

The RP-4 Process Improvements Project is consistent with IEUA's Business Goal of Wastewater
Management specifically the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure the treatment
facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainably managed,
and can accommodate changes in regional water use.

On February 17, 2020, the Board of Directors awarded a Construction Contract to W.M. Lyles 
for the RP-4 Process Improvements Project for $10,553,000.
On November 16, 2016, the Board of Directors awarded a contract to Carollo Engineers for the 
project management and design services on the RP-4 Primary Clarifier Rehabilitation, Project 
No. EN17043, and RP-4 Process Improvements, Project No. EN17110, for a not-to-exceed 
amount of $1,288,858.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Change Order (Click to Download)
Attachment 3 - Opinion Memo from Jean Cihigoyenetche, APC of JC Law Firm (Click to 
Download)
Attachment 4 - Contractor Proposal  (Click to Download)

Environmental :
Categorical Exemption
CEQA identifies certain categories of projects as exempt from more detailed environmental 
review because these categories have been deemed to have no potential for significant impact 
on the environment. This project qualifies for a Categorical Exemption Class 1 as defined in 
Section 15301(b) of the State CEQA Guidelines.

21139

https://www.dropbox.com/s/2s8dyror2brsgwm/21139%20C.%20RP-4%20Process%20Improvements%20Change%20Order.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/go47sl42bgjgjr0/21139%20D.%20RP-4%20Process%20Improvements%20Change%20Order_Letter%20Opionion%20Memo.RP-4%20Blower%20Replacement%204.16.21.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/ks8hf3skdv1j0wu/21139%20E.%20RP-4%20Process%20Improvements%20Change%20Order_Letter%20RP-4%20Neuros%20Blower%20Project_WML%20Proposal.pdf?dl=0


 

 

Attachment 1 



RP-4 Process Improvements 
Construction Change Order 

Project EN17110

James Spears, P.E.

Senior Engineer

June 2021



2

Project Location: Regional Plant 4 

Aeration Blower 

Building



• RP-4 Process Improvements and Primary Clarifier Rehabilitation

— Construction Contract Award in February 2020 to WM Lyles Co.

• Rehabilitation and improvements throughout RP-4

— Headworks, Primary Treatment,  Secondary Treatment, and Tertiary Treatment

• Completion in November 2021

3

The Project 

RP-4 Headworks Bypass in Progress New RP-4 Secondary Clarifier Channel Covers



• RP-4 aeration blower system deficiencies:

— Different manufacturers and sizes 

— 33 years old blower

— Limited redundancy

— Inefficient technology

— History of failures during summer

• Captured in 2018 Pre-Design Report

—Removed from scope due to budget concerns

• Delayed to future project, RP-4 Process 
Improvements, Phase II (EN20057)

4

The Problem

Existing Turblex Blower

Existing Kawasaki Blower



Expedite Replacement with High-Speed Turbo Blowers

HOW

• Utilize 2018 Pre-selected equipment, Neuros

• RP-4, RP-5, and CCWRF standardization

• Increased reliability, redundancy, and efficiency

• Reduced energy consumption and noise levels

FUNDING

• W.M. Lyles bid lower than anticipated

• Use unencumbered funds in total project budget

5

The Opportunity

Neuros High-Speed Turbo Blowers



6

Project Delivery Evaluation

Change Order New Project 

Approach RP-4 Process Improvements

WM Lyles Co.

Expedite Blower Replacement

Design-Build

Cost $2,627,436

(Proposal) 
$3,920,437 

(Engineer’s Estimate)
Construction 

Completion

February 2022

(1 summer season)
October 2022

(2 summer seasons)



7

Project Budget

Project Milestone Date

Construction

Construction Contract Award February 2020

Original Completion November 2021

New Construction Completion February 2022

Description

Estimated Cost

EN17110

Estimated Cost

EN17043

Design Services $1,450,793 $543,012
Design Consultant Contract $1,276,793 $443,012

IEUA Design Services  (actuals) $174,000 $100,000

Construction Services $1,223,721 $394,395
Engineering Services During Construction $823,721 $194,395

IEUA Construction Services $400,000 $200,000

Construction $10,369,236 $3,866,500
Construction Contract (EN17110 & EN17043) $7,038,000 $3,515,000

Contingency (~10%) $703,800 $351,500

Change Order (this action) $2,627,436 $0

Total Project Cost (EN17110/17043, In Construction): $13,043,750 $4,803,907

Total Project Cost (EN17110.01, Completed): $4,857,578 $0

Total Project Cost (EN17110.03, In Construction): $5,552,448 $0

Total Project Costs (All): $23,453,776 $4,803,907

Total Project Budget: $20,962,396 $7,681,542

Remaining Project Budget:* -$2,491,380 $2,877,635

*Request to transfer $2,500,000 from EN17043 to EN17110



• Approve a construction change order for the RP-4 Process Improvements, Project No. EN17110, to 
W.M. Lyles Co., for the not-to-exceed amount of $2,627,436, increasing the contract from $10,553,000 
to $13,180,436 (approximately 24.9% increase);

• Approve a budget transfer from the RP-4 Primary Clarifier Rehabilitation, Project EN17043, to the RP-4 
Process Improvements, Project EN17110, in amount of $2,500,000; and 

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the change order and budget transfer, subject to non-
substantive changes. 

8

Recommendation 

The RP-4 Process Improvements is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management and Water 
Reliability, that IEUA is committed to providing a reliable and cost-effective water supply, promoting sustainable water use 

throughout the region, and is committed to meeting regional demands in an environmentally responsible and cost-effective 

manner.



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

2C 
           ACTION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 16, 2021

Inland Empire Brine Line Capacity Contribution

On April 11, 2019, the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) and its member 
agencies entered into a Lease Capacity Pool Agreement (Agreement) for the Inland Empire 
Brine Line (Brine Line). The Agreement allows Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) to 
contribute available Brine Line capacity to a "capacity pool" for lease by new or existing 
customers based on feedback that acquisition of capacity is a significant financial challenge for 
some businesses. IEUA originally committed 0.05 MGD of Pipeline and 0.05 MGD Treatment 
and Disposal capacity to the capacity pool. The pool currently has 2.213 MGD Pipeline and 
0.466 MGD Treatment and Disposal capacity available for lease. Currently, IEUA charges 
Brine Line capacity at a cost of $215,000 per capacity unit for 15 gpm instantaneous flow.

In an effort to support the Brine Line program, IEUA has reviewed our capacity reserves and 
identified that there is sufficient capacity to contribute an additional 0.3 MGD Pipeline and 0.3 
MGD Treatment and Disposal Capacity to the capacity pool. By contributing to the capacity 
pool, IEUA may potentially save fixed pipeline and treatment costs should customers lease 
capacity. The Agreement requires a Board Resolution be submitted to SAWPA to contribute to 
the capacity pool. Resolution No. 2021-6-9 the SAWPA requirement for capacity contribution.

Adopt Resolution No. 2021-6-9, committing an additional 0.3 MGD of Pipeline and 0.3 MGD 
of Treatment and Disposal Capacity to the Inland Empire Brine Line Lease Capacity Pool.

If approved and capacity is leased to customers, the lease revenue for the 0.35 MGD of Pipeline
and Treatment and Disposal Capacity may increase the Non-Reclaimable Fund up to
$100,630.49 per fiscal year and may save an additional $88,053 in avoided fixed pipeline and
treatment costs per fiscal year based on SAWPA's projected FY2021/22 rates.

06/16/21Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The agreement supports IEUA's business goal of Fiscal Responsibility and Business Practices by
maintaining service rates and fees that support cost of service for IEUA programs and provides
regional benefit in an equitable manner within the IEUA service area.

On March 20, 2019, the Board of Directors approved the Inland Empire Brine Line Lease
Capacity Pool Agreement with SAWPA.

On September 18, 2019, the Board of Directors approved the contribution of Brine Line capacity
for a 12-month duration for the Chino Basin Desalter Authority.

Attachment 1 - Resolution No. 2021-6-9

Not Applicable

21121



Inland Empire Brine Line Capacity 
Contribution

Ken Tam, P.E.

Deputy Manager of Strategic Planning & Resources

June 2021



Brine Line Capacity
• SAWPA Brine Line Member Agencies

— Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA)

— Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD)

— San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (SBVMWD)

— Western Municipal Water District (WMWD)

• Brine Line Dischargers
— Industrial wastewater discharge permit & Brine Line capacity

• Brine Line Capacity
— 17 MGD owned by Brine Line Member Agencies

— Two components:  Pipeline and Treatment & disposal 
capacity

• IEUA Brine Line Capacity - $215,000 per 15 GPM
— 2.453 MGD Pipeline capacity available

— 0.569 MGD of Treatment & Disposal capacity available

2



Brine Line Lease Capacity Pool
• SAWPA and Brine Line Member Agencies developed

Capacity Pool program - 2019

— Customer demand

— IEUA & WMWD contributed combined 0.1 MGD

• Lease Capacity Pool

— Lease agreements between SAWPA and customer

— Lease revenues distributed proportionally by 

contribution

• Lease Pool Contribution Benefits

— Excess capacity available

— Capacity reserved for future customers

— Lease revenues offset SAWPA fixed capacity costs

3



Staff Recommendation 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-6-9, committing an additional 0.3 MGD of Pipeline and 0.3
MGD of Treatment and Disposal Capacity to the Inland Empire Brine Line Lease Capacity
Pool.

4

The Inland Empire Brine Line Lease Capacity Pool Agreement is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goal 
of Fiscal Responsibility and Business Practices. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-6-9 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN 
BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, CONTRIBUTING 
ADDITIONAL CAPACITY TO THE INLAND EMPIRE 
BRINE LINE LEASE CAPACITY POOL  

WHEREAS, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* is a member agency of the Santa Ana 
Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA); and  

WHEREAS, on April 11, 2019, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency entered into an 
agreement with SAWPA for the creation of a lease capacity pool for the Inland Empire Brine Line 
(Lease Capacity Pool Agreement); and  

WHEREAS, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency initially committed 0.05 MGD of 
Pipeline and 0.05 MGD of Treatment and Disposal Capacity at 104.25 pounds of BOD and TSS 
per day, respectively to the Inland Empire Brine Line Lease Capacity Pool; and  

WHEREAS, the lease capacity pool currently has 2.213 MGD of Pipeline and 0.466 MGD 
of Treatment and Disposal Capacity available for lease; and 

WHEREAS, the Lease Capacity Pool Agreement allows a member agency to offer a 
contribution of additional capacity to the pool by delivering to SAWPA a Board Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency desires to offer a contribution of 
additional capacity in the Inland Empire Brine Line Lease Capacity Pool to potentially offset fixed 
capacity costs; and  

WHEREAS, the Lease Capacity Pool Agreement requires the offeror to contribute 
additional capacity to specify the flow rate and water quality in pounds of BOD and TSS per day 
being added to the pool. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors that: 

1. The Inland Empire Utilities Agency General Manager and staff are hereby authorized to enter
into an agreement with SAWPA to contribute 0.3 MGD of Pipeline and 0.3 MGD of Treatment
and Disposal Capacity at 625.5 pounds of BOD and TSS per day, respectively to the Inland
Empire Brine Line Lease Capacity Pool.

2. Capacity contributed to the lease capacity pool shall come from the IEUA’s Non-Reclaimable
or Regional Fund capacity reserves.



Resolution No. 2021-6-9
Page 2 

ADOPTED this 16th day of June 2021 

Jasmin A. Hall 
President of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*  
and of the Board of Directors thereof  

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Steven J. Elie 
Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire  
Utilities Agency* and the Board of Directors thereof 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 



Resolution No. 2021-6-9
Page 3 

I, Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2021-6-9, was adopted at an 

adjourned regular Board Meeting on June 16, 2021, of said Agency by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

___________________________________ 
Steven J. Elie 
Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency* and the Board of Directors thereof  

(SEAL) 

*A Municipal Water District



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

2D 
           ACTION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 16, 2021

Inland Empire Brine Line Capacity Utilization Program Agreement

The Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) operates and maintains the Inland
Empire Brine Line (Brine Line) that serves its member agencies which include Inland Empire
Utilities Agency (IEUA), Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD), San Bernardino Valley
Municipal Water District (SBVMWD) and Western Municipal Water District (WMWD).
SAWPA has purchased 17 MGD of pipeline and treatment and disposal capacity rights from
Orange County Sanitation District (OCSD) and in turn has sold these capacity rights to the
member agencies. OCSD has informed SAWPA that capacity is unavailable for purchase until
the 17 MGD is fully utilized.

On April 6, 2021, the SAWPA Project Agreement (PA) 24 Committee unanimously approved
the creation of the Capacity Utilization Program. The program makes use of any currently
unused capacity rights available to new and existing customers through the Lease Capacity Pool.
Existing customers will not lose their capacity rights and can continue to discharge up to their
purchased capacity rights. SAWPA will make an initial contribution of 0.5 MGD of unused
capacity to the Lease Pool and the lease revenues collected would be held in a reserve fund to
only be used to fund future purchase of additional capacity from OCSD.

1. Approve the Inland Empire Brine Line Capacity Utilization Program Agreement between
IEUA, EMWD, SBVMWD, WMWD, and SAWPA; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the Agreement, subject to non-substantive
changes.

There is no fiscal impact.

06/16/21Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The agreement supports IEUA's business goal of Fiscal Responsibility and Business Practices by
maintaining service rates and fees that support cost of service for IEUA programs and provides
regional benefit in an equitable manner within the IEUA service area.

On March 20, 2019, the Board of Directors approved the Inland Empire Brine Line Lease
Capacity Pool Agreement with SAWPA. On September 18, 2019, the Board of Directors
approved the contribution of Brine Line capacity for a 12-month duration for the Chino Basin
Desalter Authority. On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors will also consider the contribution
of 0.35 MGD of capacity to the Lease Pool.

Attachment 1 - Inland Empire Brine Line Capacity Utilization Program Agreement Background
Attachment 2 - Powerpoint
Attachment 3 - Inland Empire Brine Line Capacity Utilization Program Agreement

Not Applicable

21122



           Page 1 of 2 
   
 
 

 

Background 
Subject:  Inland Empire Brine Capacity Utilization Program Agreement 
  
  
The Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) operates and maintains the Inland Empire 
Brine Line (Brine Line) that serves its member agencies which include Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency (IEUA), Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD), San Bernardino Valley Municipal 
Water District (SBVMWD) and Western Municipal Water District (WMWD).  SAWPA has 
purchased 17 MGD of pipeline and treatment and disposal capacity rights from Orange County 
Sanitation District (OCSD) and in turn has sold these capacity rights to the member agencies.  
Currently, the capacity being discharged into the Brine Line is approximately 11 MGD, leaving 
approximately 6 MGD unused. 
 
On April 11, 2019, SAWPA and the member agencies entered into a Lease Capacity Pool (Lease 
Pool) Agreement for the Brine Line.  The Lease Pool allows customers to lease Brine Line pipeline 
and treatment and disposal capacity without the financial burden of acquiring capacity rights 
outright.  IEUA currently charges capacity rights at a cost of $215,000 per capacity unit for 15 
gallons per minute of instantaneous flow.  IEUA currently has 2.153 MGD Pipeline and 0.269 
MGD of Treatment and Disposal Capacity available in the Brine Line, provided that the Board 
approves the 0.3 MGD contribution to the lease pool capacity per Resolution 2021-6-17. 
 
As SAWPA does not own excess capacity, OCSD has informed SAWPA that additional treatment 
and disposal capacity is unavailable for purchase until the 17 MGD of capacity is fully utilized. 
There are currently customers in the SAWPA service area that are in need of capacity, such as 
EMWD’s Desalter that is seeking to acquire 0.5 MGD capacity.   
 
In response to the demand, SAWPA and the member agencies have developed the Capacity 
Utilization Program which establishes a program to make use of any currently unused capacity 
rights available to member agencies, new and existing customers.  On April 6, 2021, the SAWPA 
Project Agreement (PA) 24 Committee unanimously approved the creation of the Capacity 
Utilization Program. 
 
The benefits of this program would increase the use of the Brine Line, spread the cost of operating 
the Brine Line over additional dischargers, and provide the leasing of the pipeline, treatment and 
disposal capacity rights until such time the capacity rights can be purchased by SAWPA from 
OCSD.  Existing customers will not lose their capacity rights and can continue to discharge up to 
their purchased capacity rights.  
    
The Capacity Utilization Program would make available the unused pipeline and treatment and 
disposal capacity through the current Lease Pool.  Initially, SAWPA would make an initial 
contribution of 0.5 MGD of unused capacity to the Lease Pool for discharger leases.  Additional 
capacity may be added in the future upon approval by SAWPA’s PA 24 Committee.  It should be 
noted that member agency contributions to the Lease Pool would be utilized first before any 
contributions of unused capacity from the Capacity Utilization Program.  The discharger leases 
would also follow the terms and conditions of the Lease Capacity Pool Agreement and would pay 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

the regular Brine Line Rates based on their discharges and would be subject to all of the 
Pretreatment Program rules and requirements. 
 
The lease revenues collected by SAWPA from the Capacity Utilization Program would be held in 
an established reserve fund called the “OCSD Future Capacity Reserve” which would only be used 
to fund future purchase of additional capacity from OCSD.   



Inland Empire Brine Line Capacity 
Utilization Program Agreement

Ken Tam, P.E.

Deputy Manager of Strategic Planning & Resources

June 2021



History & Current Capacity Use

• SAWPA Brine Line Member Agencies

— Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA)

— Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD)

— San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
(SBVMWD)

— Western Municipal Water District (WMWD)

• 17 MGD of Pipeline and Treatment Capacity

• Current Use: 11 MGD used & 6 MGD unused

• Lease Capacity Pool – approved in 2019

• OC Sanitation Districts – must fully utilize 
capacity

2



Capacity Utilization Program

• SAWPA and Brine Line Member Agencies developed 
program

— Demand from customers (e.g. EMWD)

— Utilize unused capacity until additional capacity can be 
purchased from OC Sanitation Districts 

• Lease Capacity Pool
— SAWPA to contribute 0.5 MGD

— Brine Line Member Agency capacity in pool used first

— Leases follow terms of Lease Capacity Pool

• Lease revenues held in reserve to purchase future 
capacity

3



Benefits of Capacity Utilization Program 

• Increases the availability of Brine Line

• Spread the cost of operating Brine Line over 

more dischargers

• Existing customers will not lose capacity 

rights

• SAWPA PA 24 Committee approved on April 

6, 2021

4



Staff Recommendation 

1. Approve the Inland Empire Brine Line Capacity Utilization Program Agreement between 
IEUA, EMWD, SBVMWD, WMWD, and SAWPA; and 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the Agreement, subject to non-substantive 
changes

5

The Inland Empire Brine Line Lease Capacity Pool Agreement is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goal 
of Fiscal Responsibility and Business Practices. 



{//Capacity Utilization Agrt with Member Agencies    

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY (SAWPA) 

AND 
EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT (EMWD) 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY (IEUA) 
SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT (SBVMWD) 

WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT (WMWD) 
FOR THE CREATION OF THE  

INLAND EMPIRE BRINE LINE CAPACITY UTILIZATION PROGRAM 
 

 
This Agreement is made this __ day of _______, 2021, by and between SAWPA and EMWD, IEUA, 
SBVMWD, AND WMWD (the Member Agencies).  SAWPA and the Member Agencies are individually and 
collectively referred to as the Party and Parties, respectively. 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. The Inland Empire Brine Line (Brine Line) is a wastewater pipeline conveyance system 
constructed for the transmission of non‐reclaimable wastewater. The pipeline extends from the 
Orange County line into the Upper Santa Ana River Watershed. At the Orange County line, it 
connects to the Orange County Sanitation District’s (OCSD’s) Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI), 
which conveys wastewater to OCSD’s treatment plant in Huntington Beach. SAWPA owns and 
operates the Inland Empire Brine Line, and Member Agencies and other entities in the upper 
watershed own 30 million gallons per day (MGD) of pipeline capacity right in the SARI, as 
defined in various agreements. 
 

B. Member Agencies in the upper watershed also own a treatment and disposal capacity right of 
17 MGD and there is an ability to purchase up to an additional 13 MGD for a total of 30 MGD in 
certain wastewater treatment and disposal facilities owned by OCSD. This treatment and 
disposal right, and the pipeline capacity right referred to in Recital A above, are subject to 
certain payment obligations and other terms and conditions as defined in the Treatment and 
Disposal Capacity Agreement with OCSD dated July 24, 1996 (1996 Agreement) that is 
administered by SAWPA and paid for by the Member Agencies in the upper watershed. 

 
C. Through the 1996 Agreement, SAWPA has purchased 17 MGD of treatment and disposal 

capacity right from OCSD and in turn sold this capacity right to Member Agencies in the upper 
watershed. Flow and water quality are defined components of the purchase based upon the 
maximum flow rate (Million Gallons per Day, MGD) and strength of Biochemical Oxygen 
Demand (BOD) (measured as BOD5) and Total Suspended Solids (TSS) presented as milligrams 
per liter (mg/l) and pounds per day (lbs/day).  Amendment No. 1 to the 1996 Agreement further 
defines the SAWPA‐owned treatment and disposal capacity right as 20,834 lbs/day BOD5 and 
19,832 lbs/day TSS. 



Creation of Capacity Utilization Program 
Page 2 

 

{//Capacity Utilization Agrt with Member Agencies    

 
D. The 1991 Memorandum of Understanding between SAWPA and OCSD Governing Quality 

Control of Wastewaters Discharged (1991 MOU) continues to define the pretreatment roles and 
responsibilities for SAWPA and OCSD.  SAWPA’s Ordinance No. 8, and any successors or 
amendments thereto, defines the discharge permitting requirements and process that applies to 
all discharges to the Brine Line. 

 
E. The Member Agencies utilize pipeline capacity and treatment and disposal capacity rights for 

individual dischargers in their respective service areas. Use of those capacity rights requires that 
the discharger obtain a discharge permit from the applicable Member Agency within which the 
Discharger operates.  Individual dischargers are not allowed to transfer or assign capacity to 
others. 
 

F. In 2019, SAWPA and the Member Agencies created a long‐term “Lease Capacity Pool” to make 
available pipeline and treatment and disposal capacity rights for the Member Agencies and 
individual dischargers within their respective service areas.  The Member Agencies may commit 
pipeline and treatment and disposal capacity rights to the Lease Capacity Pool that are unused 
and not otherwise committed to an individual discharger.  With respect to the Lease Capacity 
Pool, SAWPA notifies the Member Agencies when an additional contribution to the Lease 
Capacity Pool is needed to provide capacity rights to an individual discharger.  The Member 
Agencies have the option, if excess capacity is available, to contribute the excess capacity to the 
Lease Capacity Pool.  The Lease Capacity Pool is subject to terms and conditions as defined in 
the Lease Capacity Pool Agreement between SAWPA and the Member Agencies dated April 11, 
2019, that is administered by SAWPA. 
 

G. As of October 2020, actual flows to the Brine Line are approximately 12 MGD, leaving 5 MGD of 
unused volumetric treatment capacity. Similarly, BOD5 and TSS actual discharges are 
approximately 5,100 and 10,500 pounds per day, respectively, leaving 15,700 and 9,300 pounds 
per day of unused capacity.  The balance of available capacity in the Lease Capacity Pool is 0.10 
MGD. An additional commitment of 0.30 MGD may be available in the future through Member 
Agency contributions that would increase the available balance of the Lease Capacity Pool to 
0.40 MGD. 
 

H. SAWPA has from time to time received requests to lease capacity that exceeds the amount of 
capacity available in the Lease Capacity Pool.  OCSD has informed SAWPA that additional 
treatment and disposal capacity is not available for purchase by SAWPA until the purchased 17 
MGD of treatment and disposal capacity right is fully utilized.  An option such as the Capacity 
Utilization Program set forth herein would be desirable to make unused capacity right available 
to the Member Agencies, and industrial and commercial businesses within their respective 
service areas.  
 



Creation of Capacity Utilization Program 
Page 3 

 

{//Capacity Utilization Agrt with Member Agencies    

I. The purpose of this Agreement is to create an additional option to provide unused capacity for 
use through the Lease Capacity Pool until such time as additional treatment and disposal 
capacity rights can be purchased from OCSD, by and through SAWPA. 
 

J. Individual “Discharger Lease Agreements” between SAWPA and dischargers will set forth the 
specific terms and conditions for capacity leases.  Discharger Lease Agreements shall be 
consistent with this Agreement and the Lease Capacity Pool Agreement.  

 
COVENANTS 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the Parties in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Agreement do 
hereby covenant and agree as follows: 
 

1. Creation of Capacity Utilization Program.  The Capacity Utilization Program is hereby created to 
make available unused pipeline and treatment and disposal capacity rights to the Lease Capacity 
Pool in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth below.   This Agreement will not 
impact the Member Agencies’ ability to purchase treatment and disposal capacity, if OCSD 
makes it available to SAWPA, according to existing policies and procedures.   
 

2. Initial Commitment to Capacity Utilization Program.  The initial commitment of unused capacity 
through the Capacity Utilization Program to the Lease Capacity Pool is 0.50 MGD of pipeline 
capacity right and treatment and disposal capacity right at a wastewater strength of 100 mg/l 
BOD and 100 mg/l TSS, also expressed as 417.0 lbs/day BOD and 417.0 lbs/day TSS.  Increases to 
the initial commitment can be made by SAWPA at any time per Section 3, below.  SAWPA may 
withdraw capacity from the Lease Capacity Pool if the capacity is not subject to a Discharger 
Lease Agreement and upon approval of the PA 24 Committee.  SAWPA will maintain a record of 
increases, withdrawals, and leased capacity from the Lease Capacity Pool, in accordance with 
the terms specified below.  
 

3. Adding Capacity to the Lease Capacity Pool.  The Member Agencies hereby provide SAWPA with 
a license to use their respective unused pipeline and treatment and disposal capacity rights so 
that SAWPA may add such unused capacity through the Capacity Utilization Program to the 
Lease Capacity Pool if there is foreseeable demand, subject to the ultimate limits of total 
capacity purchased from OCSD and upon approval of the PA 24 Committee.  
  

4. Notification of Need for Additional Contributions of Capacity.  SAWPA will notify the Member 
Agencies when an additional contribution to the Lease Capacity Pool is needed.  The Member 
Agencies’ contributions to the Lease Capacity Pool will be utilized first, then SAWPA 
contributions through the Capacity Utilization Program, as specified in Section 3, above, shall 
next be used when preparing a Discharger Lease Agreement.   
 



Creation of Capacity Utilization Program 
Page 4 

 

{//Capacity Utilization Agrt with Member Agencies    

5. Discharger Lease Agreement Terms.  A Discharger Lease Agreement between SAWPA and the 
individual lessee/discharger must be approved by the PA 24 Committee to establish the terms 
and conditions of the Discharger Lease Agreement.  In executing leases of capacity, SAWPA will 
adhere to the provisions of the Lease Capacity Pool Agreement, Section 3.b.  Billing Terms will 
follow the Lease Capacity Pool Agreement, Section 4.0.  Termination terms will include an early 
termination provision as specified in Section 7 below. 
 

6. Use of Lease Revenues.  All revenues from the lease of capacity contributed through the 
Capacity Utilization Program, as provided in Section 3, above, will be deposited in a restricted 
Brine Line reserve fund established to purchase capacity at a future time if required to purchase 
capacity from OCSD.  Reserve target levels shall be established in accordance with the SAWPA 
reserve policy, and as approved by the PA 24 Committee.  Monies in that Brine Line reserve fund 
shall only be used to purchase such additional capacity from OCSD unless otherwise approved 
by unanimous vote of the SAWPA Commission.    
 

7. No Loss of Capacity Rights. All Member Agencies and individual dischargers with an existing 
capacity right will not lose their capacity right.  If flows in the Brine Line exceed the purchased 
treatment and disposal capacity right, and when required to by OCSD per the 1996 Agreement,  
SAWPA will purchase treatment and disposal capacity from OCSD equal to or greater than the 
commitment to the Lease Capacity Pool through the Capacity Utilization Program, typically in 
increments of one (1) MGD. Notwithstanding sections 3 and 10 of the Lease Capacity Pool 
Agreement, in the event that SAWPA exceeds the treatment and disposal capacity right 
purchased from ODSD (currently 17 MGD), and OCSD refuses to sell additional treatment and 
disposal capacity rights to SAWPA in violation of the 1996 Agreement, and OCSD refuses to 
allow SAWPA to exceed the treatment and disposal capacity right purchased from OCSD then, 
any approved Discharger Lease Agreement utilizing treatment and disposal capacity right leased 
under the Capacity Utilization Program shall terminate upon notice from SAWPA.  The 
Discharger will be required to remove its leased treatment and disposal capacity flow from the 
Brine Line and said capacity will revert to the applicable Member Agency.   
 

8. Member Agency Option to Purchase Treatment and Disposal Capacity Right.  Member Agencies 
shall have the option to purchase from SAWPA treatment and disposal capacity rights that are 
being leased under this Agreement if and when SAWPA is required to purchase such capacity 
rights from OCSD, the lessee operates in the applicable Member Agency’s service area, and 
upon termination of the individual discharger’s Discharge Lease Agreement.  The purchase price 
shall be OCSD’s sales price charged to SAWPA for such treatment and disposal capacity rights as 
set forth in Resolution 2019‐8 and any successors thereto.    
 

9. Compliance with Brine Line Ordinance.  Individual discharger lessees under the Capacity 
Utilization Program shall be required to comply with SAWPA Ordinance No. 8, the applicable 
Member Agency Ordinance and any successors to either or both of such ordinances, including 



Creation of Capacity Utilization Program 
Page 5 

 

{//Capacity Utilization Agrt with Member Agencies    

the requirement for provision of a flow meter installed per the manufacturer’s 
recommendations.  A discharge permit is required as specified in the applicable ordinance(s), 
and this Agreement does not modify any permit processes or requirements.  Draft Discharge 
Lease Agreements may be processed concurrently with permit applications, but in no case will a 
permit or permit amendment be issued without a Discharge Lease Agreement to provide 
sufficient capacity, which must be executed and in place.   
 

10. Rights and Responsibilities of Orange County Sanitation District are Retained. The parties to this 
Agreement understand and agree that OCSD retains its rights and responsibilities, as defined in 
the 1991 MOU and 1996 Agreement. This Agreement in no way diminishes the effectiveness or 
reduces the scope of the 1991 MOU and 1996 Agreement. 
 

11. Incorporation of Brine Line Pipeline and Treatment and Disposal Agreements Between SAWPA 
and the Member Agencies.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all of the terms and 
conditions of existing Brine Line system pipeline and treatment and disposal capacity 
agreements between SAWPA and the Member Agencies not conflicting with this Agreement are 
incorporated herein by this reference and shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

12. Term of OCSD Capacity Agreements. This Agreement and all Discharger Lease Agreements shall 
automatically terminate upon expiration or other termination of the 1996 Agreement, currently 
April 12, 2046.  
 

13. Amendments and Modifications. The terms of this Agreement may only be amended or 
modified in writing when executed by all of the signatories hereto. SAWPA and the Member 
Agencies shall review and amend this Agreement as necessary at least once every five years 
from the effective date or if requested by one of the Parties. 
 

14. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an 
original and which collectively shall constitute one document. 
 

15. Effectiveness of Agreement.  Subject to Section 12, above, this Agreement will remain in effect 
unless terminated by SAWPA or by the unanimous consent of all of the Agencies; provided, 
however, that once the first Discharger Lease Agreement between SAWPA and an individual 
discharger is executed, this Agreement may only be terminated following the expiration of all 
Discharger Lease Agreements that utilize capacity contributed to the Lease Capacity Pool 
through the Capacity Utilization Program, as specified in Section 3, above.  
 

16. Notice.  Except as otherwise provided herein, all notices and other communications required or 
permitted hereunder shall be in writing, and shall be delivered in person, by  E‐mail, or sent by 
certified mail, return receipt requested, and shall be deemed received upon actual receipt or 72 



Creation of Capacity Utilization Program 
Page 6 

 

{//Capacity Utilization Agrt with Member Agencies    

hours after deposit in the mail of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid and 
addressed as follows: 

 
To SAWPA: 
Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) 
Attention: General Manager 
11615 Sterling Ave. 
Riverside, CA 92503 
(951) 354‐4220 
 
To the Member Agencies: 
 
Eastern Municipal Water District 
Attention: General Manager 
2270 Trumble Road 
Perris, CA 92570 
 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

  Attention: General Manager 
6075 Kimball Avenue 
Chino, CA 91708 
 
San Bernardino Valley MWD 
Attention: General Manager  
380 E. Vanderbilt Way 
San Bernardino, CA 92408 
 
Western Municipal Water District  

  Attention: General Manager 
  14205 Meridian Parkway 
  Riverside, CA 92518 
 
In witness whereof, SAWPA and the Member Agencies have executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year first above written: 
 
 
Eastern Municipal Water District 
By:    _____________________ 
Name:    _____________________ 
Title:    _____________________ 
Date:    _____________________ 



Creation of Capacity Utilization Program 
Page 7 

 

{//Capacity Utilization Agrt with Member Agencies    

 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
By:    _____________________ 
Name:    _____________________ 
Title:    _____________________ 
Date:    _____________________ 
 
San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
By:    _____________________ 
Name:    _____________________ 
Title:    _____________________ 
Date:    _____________________ 
 
Western Municipal Water District 
By:    _____________________ 
Name:    _____________________ 
Title:    _____________________ 
Date:    _____________________ 
 
Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 
By:    _____________________ 
Name:    _____________________ 
Title:    _____________________ 
Date:    _________________ 

 
Final – 3/26/21 



   Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

3A 
INFORMATION 

ITEM 





https://www.dropbox.com/s/tfj8yppxmdo1nw4/21126%20C.%202021%20SSMP%20Audit%20Report%20Update.pdf?dl=0


2021 Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) 
Audit Report

Lucia Diaz
Deputy Manager of Maintenance

June 2021



2021 SSMP Audit

• In 2006, State Water Resources 
Control Board adopted an Order 
that requires:
—Owners of wastewater collection 

systems must have a SSMP in place
—Adopted by its governing board
—Updated every five years
—Self-audited every two years

• Goal of the SSMP
—Reduce sanitary sewer overflows



SSMP Effectiveness

0.11

0.57

0.11

2.91

1.83

3.67

1.25

1.96

1.15

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

CAT 1: Surface Waters CAT 2: >1,000 gal CAT 3: < 1,000 gal

Spill Rate Indice (Spills/100 miles/yr)

IEUA State Municipal (public) Average Regional Municipal Average



2021 SSMP Audit Process

The 2021 SSMP Audit:
• From May 2019 to March 2021
• All 11 elements and appendices
• Assigned sufficiency rankings
• Documents:

—Deficiencies 
—Necessary corrective actions

Name Position
Teresa Velarde Manager of Internal Audit

Julio Im Senior Associate Engineer

Kenneth Monfore Manager of Asset Management

Lucia Diaz Deputy Manager Maintenance

Daniel Dyer Collection System Supervisor

Internal Audit Team



SSMP Elements 2021
Ranking Score

1 Goals B 3
2 Organization B 3
3 Legal Authority A 4
4 Operations & Maintenance B 3
5 Design & Performance A 4
6 OERP* B 3
7 Fat, Oil, Grease A 4
8 SECAP** A 4
9 MMPM*** A 4
10 SSMP Audits A 4
11 Communication B 3

Overall B 3.55

Scoring Range Ranking

3.60 – 4.00 A – Well Above Average

2.60 – 3.59 B – Above Average

1.60 – 2.59 C – Average 

0.60 – 1.59 D – Below Average

0.00 – 0.59 F – Not in Compliance

2021 SSMP Audit

Ranking and Scoring ResultsScoring and Ranking System

*OERP: Overflow Emergency Response Plan
**SECAP:  System Evaluation & Capacity Assurance Plan

***MMPM:  Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Modifications



Overall Effectiveness Evaluation 

Overall Effectiveness Evaluation
2019 2021

Ranking Score Ranking Score

1. Element Sufficiency Rankings C 2.27 B 3.55

2. Meeting Agency’s Goals B 3.00 B 3.37

3. Attaining California State Goals B 3.33 B 3.33

Overall B 2.87 B 3.42

IEUA’s Overall Effectiveness is Improving



Areas of Improvement

• Element 7 and 11 
— Fats, Oils, Grease (FOG)                                          

Control Plan and Communication Program
• External Affairs partnership with Sewer Collections Team
• Social media awareness

• Element 9 
—Monitoring, Measurement, and Program 

Modifications
• SmartCover units to monitor the system 

—Sewer Collections added 14 SmartCovers within the 
last audit period, with 10 more by the end of the fiscal 
year. 

9/16/2020



The 2021 SSMP Audit Report Update, is consistent with the IEUA's Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the 
Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure the regional sewer system and treatment facilities are well maintained, 
upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainability managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use. 

Questions?



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

3B 
INFORMATION 

ITEM 



Recycled Water Groundwater Recharge 
Update

Andy Campbell, PG, CHG
GWR Coordinator/Hydrogeologist

June 2021



Accumulated Monthly Stormwater

2



Groundwater Recharge Annual History

3



Groundwater Recharge Deliveries
Past 12 Months

June to November
Record Monthly RW GWR

4



RW Recharge Deliveries
Historical Monthly Highs

 Month 

 RW Recharge 
Deliveries ‐ 

Historical Monthly 
Highs (AF) 

Year of 
Occurrence

January 1,284 2013

February 1,352 2016

March 1,598 2017

April 1,517 2017

May 1,620 2017

June 1,440 2020

July 1,330 2020

August 1,442 2020

September 1,634 2020

October 2,030 2020

November 1,749 2020

December 1,591 2017

5



San Sevaine RW Delivery

San Sevaine
Basin 1

San Sevaine
Basin 2

6



Recycled Water (RW) Demand History

Through 
March

7



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

3C 
INFORMATION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 16, 2021

2020 Urban Water Management Plan, 2020 Water Shortage Contingency Plan, and
2015 Urban Water Management Plan Addendum

The California Water Code requires an urban water supplier to prepare and adopt an urban water
management plan (UWMP) every five years. The UWMP is a planning tool for the development
of reliable water supplies and is required to be eligible for Department of Water Resources
(DWR) state grants, loans and drought assistance. The Water Shortage Contingency Plan
(WSCP) is a newly required plan presenting the potential actions to respond to water shortage
conditions. Together these efforts describe the long-term plan for ensuring water reliability and
resiliency to meet future demands and satisfy the mandated process and content requirements.

IEUA’s 2020 UWMP evaluates the potential water supply and demands, population, climate,
energy intensity, reduced Delta reliance, and associated risks through year 2045. Appendix G of
the 2020 UWMP and 2015 UWMP (via this addendum) meets the requirements of the Delta
Plan Policy WR P1 that all agencies receiving water from the Delta track their reliance. The
WSCP serves as a guide for IEUA’s intended actions during water shortage conditions and
meant to improve preparedness for droughts and other impacts on water supplies by describing
the process used to address varying degrees of water shortages. The 2020 UWMP, WSCP and
resolution were prepared per the guidelines pursuant to the March 2021 DWR Guidebook.

1. Hold a Public Hearing to receive public comments prior to the adoption of Resolution No.
2021-6-10, adopting the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan, 2020 Water Shortage
Contingency Plan, and Appendix G as an Addendum to the 2015 Urban Water Management
Plan;
2. After closing the Public Hearing, adopt Resolution 2021-6-10; and
3. Authorize the General Manager to file the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan, 2020 Water
Shortage Contingency Plan, and Appendix G as an Addendum to the 2015 Urban Water
Management Plan with the California Department of Water Resources.

WR20027: Urban Water Management Plan 2020

$130,336.00 is the total amount of the contract budgeted under WR20027: Urban Water
Management Plan 2020.

06/09/21Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan are consistent with
IEUA's Business Goal of Water Reliability by promoting water use efficiency and education to
enhance water supplies within the region and planning for regional supply resiliency and
reliability.

On June 15, 2016, the Board of Directors adopted the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan.

CEQA exempts a variety of projects from compliance with the statute. The 2020 Urban Water
Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plans qualify for a Statutory Exemption as
defined in Sections 15262 and 15282(v) of the State CEQA Guidelines.

Attachment 1 - 2020 UWMP, 2020 WSCP, and 2015 UWMP Addendum 
-CLICK HERE TO DOWNLOAD
Attachment 2 - Presentation
Attachment 3 - Resolution 2021-6-10

Not Applicable

21120

https://18x37n2ovtbb3434n48jhbs1-wpengine.netdna-ssl.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/PublicDraft_UWMP_5.26.2021.pdf


2020 Urban Water Management Plan,
2020 Water Shortage Contingency Plan, and

2015 Urban Water Management Plan Addendum 

Joshua Aguilar, P.E.
Senior Engineer

June 2021



Long-term resource planning effort to meet existing 
and future water needs, consisting of:

1. Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP)
—Filed with the Department of Water Resources

every 5 years 

2. Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP)
—Standalone document submitted with UWMP

3. Addendum to 2015 UWMP
—Adds Delta reliance compliance language

2

Background



• IEUA’s reliability assessment:
—IEUA recycled water
—Imported water from MWD

• MWD shows “near-term supply capabilities
sufficient for a drought period lasting five
consecutive years”

• IEUA can meet demands in a normal-year,
single-dry year, or 5-year drought

3

UWMP Reliability Assessment

Recycled water is a critical, 
regional, and climate resilient water supply



• Water Conservation Act of 2009 (SBX7-7)
• In 2010, IEUA and its retail agencies formed a regional alliance

—Established a baseline and set targets based on regional demands 
• Successfully met the 2020 regional alliance target

4

SBX7-7 Regional Alliance

Retail Agency Baseline 2020 Target 2020 Actual*
Chino 237 189 169

Chino Hills 217 173 157

Cucamonga Valley 
Water District 290 232 206

Fontana Water Company 216 176 154

Monte Vista Water District 205 167 124

Ontario 245 196 161

Upland 275 220 210

IEUA Region 245 193 171
All values reported in gallons per capita per day (GPCD).



Drought 
Stage 

Determined
Taskforce 

Assembles

Taskforce 
Decides 
Regional 

Action

Action Budget 
and Timing 
Generated

Taskforce 
Obtains 

Approval & 
Implements

• New requirement as part of 2018 Water Conservation legislation
—Must be included in the 2020 UWMP, but also be a standalone document

• Shortage response actions in five stages
• IEUA and retail agencies will evaluate the appropriate drought response

5

Water Shortage Contingency Plan



• As a MWD member agency, IEUA may receive water through
the Delta

• The Delta Stewardship Council expects all recipients of water
received from the Delta to individually track their impact on
the Delta

• MWD shared a narrative for its member agencies to help
ensure consistency for a regional response

• Information included in 2015 and 2020 UWMP

6

Delta Reliance



1. Hold a Public Hearing to receive public comments prior to the adoption of 
Resolution No. 2021-6-10, adopting the 2020 Urban Water Management 
Plan, 2020 Water Shortage Contingency Plan, and Appendix G as an 
Addendum to the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan;

2. After closing the Public Hearing, adopt Resolution 2021-6-10; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to file the 2020 Urban Water Management 
Plan, 2020 Water Shortage Contingency Plan, and Appendix G as an 
Addendum to the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan with the California 
Department of Water Resources. 

7

Staff Recommendation

The Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan are consistent with 
IEUA's Business Goal of Water Reliability by promoting water use efficiency and planning for 

regional supply resiliency and reliability.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-6-10 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND EMPIRE 
UTILITIES AGENCY (IEUA), SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, 
ADOPTING THE 2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN, 2020 WATER 
SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN, AND APPENDIX G AS AN ADDENDUM TO 
THE 2015 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN  

Whereas, the California Legislature enacted Assembly Bill 797, (Water Code Section 
10610 et seq., known as the Urban Water Management Planning Act) during the 1983-1984 
Regular Session, and as amended subsequently, which mandates that every urban water 
supplier providing water for municipal purposes either directly or indirectly to more than 
3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, prepare an Urban 
Water Management Plan at least once every five years; and 

Whereas, the Urban Water Management Planning Act requires the preparation and 
adoption of a Water Shortage Contingency Plan, in accordance with prescribes requirements; 
and 

Whereas, the Urban Water Management Planning Act specifies the requirements and 
procedures for amending and adopting such Urban Water Management Plans; and 

Whereas, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* is a wholesale supplier of water for 
242-square miles in the western portion of San Bernardino; and

Whereas, pursuant to Section 10620 of the Urban Water Management Planning Act, 
the Inland Empire Utilities Agency has prepared the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan, 
2020 Water Shortage Contingency Plan, and Appendix G as an addendum to the 2015 Urban 
Water Management Plan; and 

Whereas, the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency has duly reviewed, 
discussed, and considered the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan, 2020 Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan, and Appendix G as an addendum to the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED BY THE INLAND 
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan is hereby adopted; and 

Section 2. The 2020 Water Shortage Contingency Plan is hereby adopted; and 

Section 3. The addendum of Appendix G to the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan is 
hereby adopted; and  

Section 4. The General Manager is hereby authorized to file an electronic copy of the 2020 
Urban Water Management Plan, 2020 Water Shortage Contingency Plan, and Appendix G to the 
2015 Urban Water Management Plan with the State Department of Water Resources within 30 



Resolution No. 2021-6-10  
Page 2 

days following its adoption and no later than July 1, 2021. 

Section 5. The General Manager is hereby authorized to file a CD or hardcopy of 
aforementioned plans with the California State Library no later than 30 days after its adoption. 

Section 6. The General Manager is hereby authorized to submit an electronic copy or a CD 
or hardcopy of the adopted aforementioned plans to any city or county in which the suppliers 
provide water no later than 30 days after its adoption. 

Section 7. The General Manager is hereby authorized and directed to implement the 
adopted aforementioned plans, including recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding 
necessary procedures, rules, and regulations in an effort to carry out effective and equitable water 
programs. 

Section 8. The Resolution shall take effect upon adoption. 

ADOPTED this 16th day of June 2021. 

___________________________________ 
Jasmin A. Hall, President of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and the Board of Directors 
thereof 

ATTEST: 

Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the  
Inland Empire Utilities Agency* and of the  
Board of Directors thereof 



Resolution No. 2021-6-10 
Page 3 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
)SS

COUNTY OF ) 
SAN BERNARDINO 

I, Steven J. Elie, Secretary of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency *, 

DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2021-6-10,  

was adopted at a regular Board Meeting on June 16, 2021, of said Agency by the following 

vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the  
Inland Empire Utilities Agency* and of 
the Board of Directors thereof  

(Seal) 

*A Municipal Water District



 Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

3D 
INFORMATION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 16, 2021

Annual Report of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee

The 2020 Annual Report of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee for Water Year
2020 was prepared on behalf of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee (PBHSC),
pursuant to the mitigation monitoring and reporting requirements of the Peace II Subsequent
Environmental Impact Report (SEIR). This report is an annual requirement for the re-operation
and expansion of the Chino Basin Desalters to monitor potential environmental impacts that
could result from attaining “hydraulic control” of groundwater outflow from the Chino Basin to
the Santa Ana River.

Monitoring and analyses indicate varying levels of greenness in the riparian vegetation
throughout Prado Basin from 2019 to 2020. Groundwater production has increased in the
PBHSP study area by 6000 AFY from 2019 -2020 as a result of the planned Chino Desalter
Authority pumping to reach the total of 40,000 AF. At this time, the PBHSC is not
recommending any changes in the Adaptive Management Plan nor any mitigation measures for
Hydraulic Control or Basin Re-Operation. The draft Annual Report for Water Year 2020 was
published and distributed in May 2021.

The 2020 Annual Report is an information item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

EN18021: Prado Basin AMP. The project is cost-shared at 50/50 between IEUA and CBWM.

$105,000 is the total amount of the contract budgeted under EN18021: Prado Basin AMP.

124100 10600 130000 570005 EN18021

06/09/21Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The 2020 Annual Report of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee is consistent with
the Agency’s Business Goal of Environmental Stewardship by being committed to the
responsible use and protection of the environment through conservation and sustainable
practices.

On June 17, 2020, the Board of Directors received and filed the 2019 Annual Report of the
Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee

On July 17,2019, the Board of Directors received and filed the 2018 Annual Report of the Prado
Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee

The Annual Report for Water Year 2020 of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee is
a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program requirement of the 2010 Peace II Subsequent
Environmental Impact Report.

Attachment 1 - 2020 Annual Report of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee 
(CLICK HERE TO DOWNLOAD REPORT)
Attachment 2 - TM-941-2021-22 PBHSP Budget

Program Environmental Impact Report (Finding of Consistency)

21123

https://cbwm.syncedtool.com/shares/file/xp85MOqqE6c/


 

23692 Birtcher Drive 
Lake Forest CA 92630 

 949.420.3030 phone 
530.756.5991 fax 
westyost.com 

 
 

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE: February 24, 2021 Project No.: 941-80-20-24 
  SENT VIA: EMAIL 
TO: Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee 
 
FROM: Chino Basin Watermaster Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Draft Recommended Scope and Budget of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability 

Program for Fiscal Year 2021/22 
 

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE 
Pursuant to the Mitigation Measure 4.4-3 of the Peace II Subsequent Environmental Impact Report (SEIR), 
the Chino Basin Watermaster (Watermaster) and the Inland Empire Utility Agency (IEUA) implement an 
Adaptive Management Plan (AMP) as a contingency measure to ensure that the riparian habitat in the Prado 
Basin will not incur significant adverse impacts associated with implementation of the Peace II Agreement. 
The AMP is implemented under the guidance and supervision of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability 
Committee (PBHSC), which is composed of representatives from all interested Prado Basin stakeholders. 

The AMP calls for the implementation of a monitoring and reporting program called the Prado Basin 
Habitat Sustainability Program (PBHSP). The PBHSP is an effort to monitor the extent and quality of the 
riparian habitat, and all of the factors that could affect the riparian habitat which include, but are not 
limited to: changes in groundwater levels, changes in surface-water discharge, weather events, climatic 
changes, pests, and wildfire. The most likely factor that may be associated with the implementation of the 
Peace II Agreement is the lowering of groundwater levels. 

The AMP calls for annual data analysis and reporting. The annual report describes the results and 
interpretations of the monitoring data and makes recommendations for adjustments to the monitoring 
program for the following fiscal year (FY), if appropriate.  

This memorandum describes the recommended activities for the PBHSP for FY 2021/22 in the form of a 
proposed scope-of-work and budget. Members of the PBHSC are being asked to: 

 Review this memorandum by March 10, 2021. 

 Attend virtual meeting of the PBHSC at 1:30 pm on March 10, 2021 to discuss the proposed 
scope-of-work and budget for FY 2021/22. 

 Submit comments and suggested revisions on the scope-of-work and budget for FY 2021/22 
by March 25, 2021. 

The final scope-of-work and budget recommended by the PBHSC will go through the IEUA and 
Watermaster budgeting processes for approval. The final scope-of-work, budget, and schedule for FY 



TM – Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee 
February 24, 2021 
Page 2 
 

 
 K-TM941-80-20-24 - 20-21 PBHSP Budget

 

2021/22 will be included in the Annual Report for Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee for Water 
Year 2019/20 that will be finalized in May 2021. 

RECOMMENDED SCOPE OF WORK AND BUDGET – FY 2021/22 
The proposed scope-of-work and budget is shown in Table 1 as a line-item cost estimate for Task 1 through 
7. The costs of the PBHSP are shared between the Watermaster and IEUA per a 2016 Agreement.1  
Watermaster is responsible for the costs associated with Tasks 1 through 3; IEUA and Watermaster split 
costs equally for Tasks 4 through 7. The Orange County Water District (OCWD) also is a cost-sharing 
partner for a sub-task in Task 5.  

The monitoring and analysis proposed for FY 2021/22 for the PBHSP is generally the same scope as the 
previous year, except for a reduction in the monitoring for the pilot monitoring program of surface and 
groundwater along Chino Creek (components of Tasks 2 and 3).  Thus far the monitoring and analysis of 
the riparian habitat, groundwater levels, precipitation, temperature, and surface-water discharge has 
been successful in identifying: (i) changes in the health and extent of the riparian habitat and (ii) 
relationships between the riparian habitat and these factors that influence it. The continuation of the 
monitoring and analyses is necessary to identify potential future changes in the riparian habitat and the 
specific causes of those changes during the implementation of the Peace II Agreement. Monitoring of the 
riparian habitat and changes in groundwater levels remain as the most critical components of the PBHSP. 
The PBHSP results will assist in the development of mitigation measures if such measures are ever 
determined to be necessary. In FY 2021/22, there continues to be a reduction in total cost due to 
efficiencies in conducting this monitoring and reporting program over the years.   

The proposed scope of work is described below by task:  

Task 1. Groundwater-Level Monitoring Program 
The monitoring of groundwater levels in the Prado Basin is a key component of the PBHSP because 
declining groundwater levels could be a factor related to Peace II implementation that adversely impacts 
riparian vegetation. Sixteen monitoring wells were installed specifically for the PBHSP in 2015. These 
wells, plus monitoring wells HCMP-5/1 and RP3-MW3, are monitored for groundwater levels. Figure 1 
shows these 18 PBHSP monitoring wells located at nine sites in the Prado Basin along the fringes of the 
riparian habitat. The 18 monitoring wells are equipped with integrated pressure-transducers/data-loggers 
that measure and record water-level measurements every 15 minutes. This task includes quarterly field 
visits to all 18 PBHSP monitoring wells to download data. All data will be checked and uploaded to the 
PBHSP database. This task is consistent with the work performed during the previous FY. 

Task 2. Groundwater-Quality Monitoring Program 
Since the PBHSP monitoring wells were constructed in 2015, groundwater-quality monitoring has been 
tailored to discern the groundwater/surface-water interactions that are important to the sustainability of 

 

1 Agreement Between Chino Basin Watermaster and Inland Empire Utilities Agency Regarding Reimbursement of 
the Peace II Subsequent Environmental Impact Report Mitigation Measure 4.4.5 (Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability 
Program). Signed September 2016.  



TM – Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee 
February 24, 2021 
Page 3 
 

 
 K-TM941-80-20-24 - 20-21 PBHSP Budget

 

the riparian habitat in Prado Basin. From FY 2015/16 through 2017/18, quarterly groundwater samples 
were collected from the 18 PBHSP monitoring wells and analyzed at a minimum for general minerals. The 
general mineral chemistry data collected was analyzed along with groundwater-level data, model-
generated groundwater-flow directions, and surface-water quality and flow data to help characterize 
groundwater/surface-water interactions in the Prado Basin and determine the source of the shallow 
groundwater that is available for consumptive use by the riparian vegetation. 

During FY 2018/19, a pilot monitoring program was initiated at four monitoring wells at two locations along 
Chino Creek (PB-7 and PB-8) where the data loggers that measure groundwater levels at 15-minute intervals 
were replaced with data loggers that measure and record EC, temperature, and water levels at 15-minute 
intervals. The same high-frequency monitoring was initiated at two nearby surface water sites in Chino Creek 
(Task 3.3). Additionally, groundwater-quality samples were collected at these wells quarterly in FY 2018/19, 
and semi-annually in FY 2019/20, and were analyzed for EC, temperature, and general minerals to validate 
and support the high-frequency data, along with the collection of field measurements of EC and 
temperature. The purpose of the pilot monitoring program is to determine if the high-frequency data better 
reveals the groundwater/surface-water interactions and enhances the interpretation of the general mineral 
data derived from grab sampling. The data collected thus far for the pilot monitoring program shows 
promise, has provided more data to support the characterization of groundwater/surface water interactions 
at these locations, and warrants the continuation of the pilot program. In addition, more high-frequency 
surface-water data needs to be collected along Chino Creek. Periodically, the data loggers within the creek 
have been lost during large storm events and the casing that house the probes have sometimes experienced 
the accumulation of mud which has compromised the accuracy of the collected data. These monitoring 
challenges in the field have resulted in extended periods of no data or erroneous data and have necessitated 
additional field work to resolve. The pilot program should continue for at least another year to collect 
enough data to draw defensible conclusions.    

Tasks 2.1 is to continue the pilot monitoring program in FY 2021/22 to collect the high-frequency data in 
groundwater to help discern the groundwater/surface water interactions near PB-7 and PB-8. The 
monitoring wells will be visited quarterly to download the data from the data loggers and all data will be 
checked and uploaded to the PBHSP database. This FY 2021/22, groundwater quality samples will not be 
collected at the four wells for laboratory analyses of EC, temperature, and general mineral analytes as was 
done the prior two fiscal years, as this data is no longer required to validate and support the high-frequency 
data. 

Task 3. Surface-Water Monitoring Program 
Surface-water discharge data from the Santa Ana River and the tributaries that cross Prado Basin are 
evaluated to characterize the influence of surface-water discharge on the riparian habitat. The surface-
water monitoring program utilizes publicly-available data sets which include: the USGS daily discharge 
measurements at six sites along the Santa Ana River and its tributaries; daily discharge and water-quality 
data from Publicly-Owned Treatment Works (POTWs) that are tributary to Prado Basin; US Army Corps of 
Engineers (ACOE) daily measurements of reservoir elevation and releases from the reservoir at Prado 
Dam; and Watermaster’s quarterly surface-water-quality monitoring at two sites along the Santa Ana 
River. The locations of these surface-water monitoring sites are shown on Figure 1. 



TM – Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee 
February 24, 2021 
Page 4 
 

 
 K-TM941-80-20-24 - 20-21 PBHSP Budget

 

Tasks 3.1 and 3.2 include the annual collection of the USGS, POTW, and ACOE data for water year 2021, 
and the processing, checking, and uploading of these data to the PBHSP database. These tasks do not 
include the processing, checking, and uploading of the Watermaster-collected Santa Ana River data, which 
is performed for another Watermaster task. The scope of these tasks is consistent with the work 
performed for the previous fiscal year. 

Surface water-quality data are also collected and analyzed in the pilot monitoring program to help 
characterize groundwater/surface water interactions. During FY 2018/19, a pilot monitoring program was 
initiated at two locations along Chino Creek adjacent to wells PB-7 and PB-8. At these locations, data 
loggers were installed in Chino Creek to measure and record EC, temperature, and stage at 15-minute 
intervals in coordination with the similar high-frequency monitoring at PB-7 and PB-8 (Task 2). Grab 
samples of surface water were also collected quarterly for EC, temperature, and general mineral analyses, 
along with field measurements of EC and temperature.  As described above for Task 2 – Groundwater-
Quality Monitoring Program, the purpose of the pilot monitoring program is to determine if the high-
frequency data better reveals the groundwater/surface-water interactions and enhances the 
interpretation of the general mineral data derived from grab sampling. Periodically, the data loggers within 
the creek have been lost during large storm events and the casing that house the probes have sometimes 
experienced the accumulation of mud which has compromised the accuracy of the collected data. These 
monitoring challenges in the field have resulted in extended periods of no data or erroneous data, and have 
necessitated additional field work to resolve. The pilot program should continue for at least another year to 
collect enough data to draw defensible conclusions.    

Tasks 3.3 is to continue the pilot monitoring program in FY 2021/22 to collect the high-frequency data in 
the surface water to help discern the groundwater/surface water interactions near wells PB-7 and PB-8. 
The probes will be visited quarterly to download the data, collect field measurements for temperature 
and EC, and routinely clean the probes to prevent the buildup of residue. All data will be checked and 
uploaded to the PBHSP database. In FY 2021/22, surface water quality samples will not be collected at the 
two surface water sites for laboratory analyses of EC, temperature, and general mineral analytes as was 
done the prior two fiscal years, as these data are no longer needed to validate and support the high-
frequency data.  

Task 4. Climate Monitoring Program 
Climatic data are evaluated in the vicinity of the Prado Basin to characterize trends, and to determine if 
these trends contribute to impacts on the riparian habitat. The climate monitoring program utilizes 
publicly-available datasets. Two types of datasets are compiled: time-series data measured at weather 
stations and spatially-gridded datasets. Task 4 includes the annual collection of the time-series data and 
spatially-gridded datasets for water year 2021 (October 2020 – September 2021), and the checking and 
uploading of the data to the PBHSP database. The scope of this task is consistent with the work performed 
for the previous fiscal year. 

Task 5. Riparian Habitat Monitoring Program 
Monitoring the extent and quality of the riparian habitat in the Prado Basin is a fundamental component 
of the PBHSP to characterize how the riparian habitat changes over time. To characterize the impacts of 
Peace II implementation on the riparian habitat (if any) it is necessary to understand the long-term 



TM – Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee 
February 24, 2021 
Page 5 
 

 
 K-TM941-80-20-24 - 20-21 PBHSP Budget

 

historical trends of its extent and quality and the factors that have affected it. The current riparian habitat 
monitoring program consists of both regional and site-specific components. The proposed riparian habitat 
monitoring program for FY 2021/22 is described in the subsections below. 

Regional Monitoring  

The regional monitoring of riparian habitat is performed via two independent methods that complement 
each other: mapping and analysis of the riparian habitat using (i) air photos and (ii) the normalized 
distribution vegetation index (NDVI) derived from the Landsat remote-sensing program. Tasks 5.1, 5.2, 
and 5.3 are for the collection and compilation of the regional monitoring data, including: 

 Perform a custom flight (via outside professional services) to acquire a high-resolution air 
photo (three-inch pixel) of the Prado Basin during summer 2021. The cost for the air photo is 
shared with OCWD. 

 Catalog and review the 2021 high-resolution air photo in ArcGIS and digitize the extent of the 
riparian habitat. 

 Collect, review, and upload the Landsat NDVI data for water year 2021.  

Site-Specific Monitoring  

The site-specific monitoring of the riparian habitat consists of periodic field surveys of the riparian 
vegetation at selected locations. These surveys provide an independent measurement of vegetation 
quality that can be used to “ground truth” the regional monitoring of the riparian habitat. To date, the 
United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) along with the OCWD2 has conducted field surveys once 
every three years. The most recent triennial field survey was conducted in the summer of 2019. The next 
field survey is scheduled for the summer of 2022. There is no scope or budget proposed for site-specific 
monitoring for FY 2021/22. 

Task 6. Prepare Annual Report of the PBHSC 
This task involves the analysis of the data sets collected by the PBHSP through water year 2021. The results 
and interpretations generated from the data analysis will be documented in the Annual Report for Prado 
Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee for Water Year 2020/21. This task includes the effort to prepare 
an administrative draft report for Watermaster and IEUA staff review, a draft report for the review by the 
PBHSC, and a final report including comments and responses. A PBHSC meeting will be conducted in May 
2022 to review the draft report and facilitate comments on the report. The scope of this task is consistent 
with the work performed for the previous fiscal year. 

Task 7. Project Management and Administration 
This task includes the effort to prepare the PBHSP scope, schedule, and budget for the subsequent fiscal 
year. A draft Technical Memorandum Recommended Scope and Budget of the Prado Basin Habitat 
Sustainability Program for FY 2022/23 will be submitted to the PBHSC in February 2022. A PBHSC meeting 
will be conducted in March 2022 to review the draft recommended scope and budget and facilitate 

 

2  OCWD staff provides assistance to the USBR in the field as in-kind services. 



TM – Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee 
February 24, 2021 
Page 6 
 

 
 K-TM941-80-20-24 - 20-21 PBHSP Budget

 

comments. Also included in this task is project administration, including management of staffing and 
monthly financial reporting. The scope of this task is consistent with the work performed for the previous 
fiscal year. 



TM – Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee 
February 24, 2021 
Page 7 
 

 
 K-TM941-80-20-24 - 20-21 PBHSP Budget

 

Insert: 

Table 1. Work Breakdown Structure and Cost Estimate – Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Program – FY 
2021/22 

Figure 1. Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Program Monitoring Sites – Fiscal Year 2021/22 

 



10.8 $13,125 $660 $13,785 $14,678 -$893 - $13,785
1.1 17 4 4.8 $4,878 $500 $160 $660 $5,538 $5,910

1.2 17 4 6.0 $8,246 $0 $8,246 $8,768

Task 2: Groundwater Quality Monitoring Program 0.0 $5,188 $185 $5,373 $10,140 -$4,767 - $5,373

2.1 4 4 4.4 $5,188 $125 $60 $185 $5,373 $4,475

2.2 4 2 0.0 $0 $0 $0 $5,665

Task 3: Surface Water Monitoring Program 2.6 $9,622 $185 $9,807 $14,252 -$4,445 - $9,807

3.1 1 1.8 $2,346 $0 $2,346 $2,559

3.2 1 0.9 $1,216 $0 $1,216 $1,096

3.3 2 4 5.0 $6,060 $125 $60 $185 $6,245 $5,794

3.4 2 2 0.0 $0 $0 $0 $4,802

Task 4: Climate Monitoring Program 1.3 $1,806 $275 $2,081 $2,039 $42 $1,040.50 $1,040.50
4.1 1 1.3 $1,806 $275 $275 $2,081 $2,039

Task 5: Riparian Habitat Monitoring Program 21.0 $23,696 $9,000 $32,696 $34,738 -$2,042 $16,348.00 $16,348.0

5.1 1 1.3 $2,386 $9,000 $9,000 1 11,386 12,860

5.2 1 3.5 $6,104 $0 6,104 7,642

5.3 1 9.3 $15,206 $0 $15,206 $14,236

Task 6: Prepare Annual Report of the PBHSC 54.0 $88,448 $180 $88,628 $91,224 -$2,596 $44,314.00 $44,314.0

6.1 1 39.5 $63,060 $0 $63,060 $66,268

6.2 1 2.0 $4,000 $90 $90 $4,090 $4,002

6.3 1 5.0 $7,904 $0 $7,904 $7,680

6.4 1 3.0 $5,848 $90 $90 $5,938 $5,810
6.5 1 4.5 $7,636 $0 $7,636 $7,464

Task 7: Project Management and Administration 10.5 $20,012 $90 $20,102 $20,751 -$649 $10,051.00 $10,051.00
7.1 1 4.0 $7,696 $0 $7,696 $7,528

7.2 1 3.5 $6,772 $90 $90 $6,862 $6,714

7.3 12 3.0 $5,544 $0 $5,544 $6,509
208 $161,896 $790 $120 $0 $9,275 $0 $10,575 $172,471 $187,821 -$15,350 $71,754 $100,718

Analyze Data and Prepare Admin Draft Report for CBWM/IEUA

Meet with CBWM/IEUA to Review Admin Draft Report

Incorporate CBWM/IEUA Comments and Prepare Draft Report: 
Submit Draft Report to PBHSC

Meet with PBHSC to Review Draft Report
Incorporate PBHSC Comments and Finalize Report

Prepare Scope and Budget for FY 2022/23

Meet with PBHSC to Review Scope and Budget for
FY 2022/23

Project Administration and Financial Reporting
Totals

1 - This is half of the cost for the outside professional. OCWD will pay the other half.

Perform a Custom Flight to Acquire a High-Resolution 2021 Air Photo 
of the Prado Basin

Catalog, Check, and Review the Extent of the Riparian Vegetation in 
the 2020 Air Photo of the Prado Basin

Collect, Check, and Upload 2021 Landsat NDVI Data to the PBHSP 
Database

IEUA Share 
2021/22

Collect, Check, and Upload Climatic Data (Annual)

Task 1: Groundwater Level Monitoring Program
Collect Transducer Data from PBHSP Wells (Quarterly)
Collect, Check, and Upload Transducer Data from PBHSP Wells 
(Quarterly)

Collect, Check, and Upload High-Frequency Probe Data from Pilot 
Monitoring Program (Quarterly)

Collect, Check, and Upload Grab Sample General Mineral Chemistry 
Data (Semi-annually)

Collect, Check, and Upload Surface Water Discharge and Quality Data 
from POTWs, and Dam Level data from the ACOE (Annual)

Collect, Check, and Upload Surface Water Discharge and Quality Data 
from USGS gaging stations (Annual)

Collect, Check, and Upload High-Frequency Probe Data for Chino 
Creek from Pilot Monitoring Program (Quarterly)

Collect, Check, and Upload Grab Surface Water Quality Field and Lab 
Data for Chino Creek from Pilot Monitoring Program (Semi-annually)

Varience from 
Prior FYNo. of sites Travel

Equipment  
Rental Lab Outside Pro Equipment

CBWM Share 
2021/22

Table 1.  Work Breakdown Structure and Cost Estimate
Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Program: FY 2021/22

Task Description

Labor Total Other Costs

N
ot

es

Totals

Task Rep
Multiplier

Person
Days Total Total

Recommended 
Budget 

2021/22
 Budget 
2020/21

K-941-80-20-24-WP-TM-T1

Chino Basin Watermaster
Prado Basin Habitat

Last Revised: 01-15-20



Figure 1

Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Program
Monitoring Sites - Fiscal Year 2021/22

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")
")

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#

#

#

#
#

#
#

#

##

##

#
#

#

#

#

#
#

##

##

#
# # #

##

")

")

"/

"/
"/ "/ "/

"/
"/ "/ "/

"/"/ "/ "/ "/

"/

"/
"/

"/

"/

"/

"/

"/

"/

"/
"/

"/

"/

"/
"/

"/"/

!"a$

Chino Hills

?»

?q

?£

Jurupa Mountains

La Sierra
Hills

Mission Blvd

Riverside Dr

Bellegrave  Ave

Limonite  Ave

Ha
ve

n A
ve

Ce
ntr

al 
Av

e

Ar
ch

iba
ld 

Av
e

Ra
mo

na
 A

ve

Edison  Ave

Gr
ov

e A
ve

Sa
n 

Se
va

ine
 C

re
ek

Chino Creek

Sant
a  A

na 
 Rive

r
Cu

ca
mo

ng
a C

ree
k

Cy
pre

ss
 C

ha
nn

el

Temescal Wash

Butterfield Drain

Mill C
ree

k

Chino Airport

Ha
mn

er 
Av

e

Schleisman Rd

Chandler St

6th St

4th St

5th St

2nd St

Pine Ave

Kimball Ave
Eu

cli
d A

ve

He
llm

an
 Av

e

El Prado Rd

Prado DamPrado Dam

Da
y C

ree
k

WRCRWA 

Chino Creek @ RP2

Chino Creek @ Euclid

SAR at MWD Crossing

Temescal Creek
at Main 

San Antonio Creek
at Riverside

Chino Creek at
Schaefer

Cucamonga Creek
Near Mira Loma 

SAR Below
Prado Dam

IEUA RP-1 Prado

IEUA Carbon Canyon

IEUA RP-1 Cucamonga

Corona 1B

IEUA RP-5
Riverside
RWQCP

SAR at
Etiwanda

SAR at
River
Road

117°40'0"W

34
°0'

0"N
Groundwater and Surface Water

Monitoring Sites

Chino Basin Desalter Authority Well"/

!A
PBHSP Well Site
(High-Frequency Groundwater Levels)

Prado Basin Management Zone (Prado Basin)

Orange
County

San Bernardino

  

Los Angeles
 County

Riverside
County 

Chino
Basin

Prado
Basin

Aerial Photo: USDA, 2014. Mosaic of photos from 
May 13, 2014 to June 3, 2014

Unlined Rivers and Streams

Concrete-Lined Channels

Other Features

POTW Discharge Outfall 
(Discharge and Surface Water Quality)

USGS Stream Gage Station (Discharge)

Watermaster Santa Ana River Sites -
Maximum Benefit Monitoring
(Surface Water Quality)

")

")

")

Vegetation Field Survey Sites

Active Survey Locations#*

PBHSP Surface Water Site on Chino Creek
(High-Frequency Temperature, EC, and Levels)

")

0 1 2
Km

Prepared by:

0 1 2

Miles Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee 
Fiscal Year 2021/22 Scope and Budget

Author: SO

Date: 2/24/2021

K:\Clients\941 Chino Basin Watermaster\00-00-00 Chino Basin Master Project\SOB\GIS\MXD\2020\1\Ex_1-1



Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

3E 
INFORMATION 

ITEM 



RP-5 Expansion Project Update: 
June 2021

Project Nos. EN19001 and EN19006

Brian Wilson, P.E.
Senior Engineer

June 2021



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Jul 2020 ‐ Jan 2025 Construction

Jan 12 ‐ Jun 21 Aeration Basin #4 & Blower Bldg

Jan 25 ‐ Nov 7 MBR Phase1 

Dec 14 ‐ Jul 25 MBR Phase 2

Jan 4 ‐ Sep 23 Digesters

Feb 15 ‐ Aug 16 Thickening

Jan 18 ‐ Aug 24 Dewatering

Jul 1 ‐ Jun 14 Aeration Basin #3

Construction Award

Jul 15
Biosolids Milestone

Jan 11
Project Completion

Jan 10

Day 320 of 1640 = 19.5%

Role Firm Contract This Month’s 
Payment Total Paid % Complete

Contractor WM Lyles $     329,978,941 $13,530,616 $48,391,955 14.7%

Designer Parsons $       33,637,098 $392,000 $26,435,632 78.5%
Construction 
Management Arcadis $       21,125,523 $425,330 $3,762,545 17.8%

Data date: 5/31/2021

RP-5: Project Status

2



3

RP-5: Major Activity Areas 
This Month & Next Month
• Influent Pump Station
• Primary Clarifiers
• Power Center 9
• Fine Screens
• Aeration Basin 
• RAS Vault
• Power Center 6 / Blower Building 2
• Power Center 4
• MBR Phase 1
• Thickening Building
• Acid Phase Digester & Building
• Gas Phase Digesters & Building
• Dewatering Building

Construction
Staff
143



4

RP-5: Major Activities

Influent Pump Station



5

RP-5: Major Activities

Fine Screens Primary Clarifiers



6

RP-5: Major Activities

MBR Phase 1



7

RP-5: Major Activities

Digester Area Time-Lapse September 2020 - May 2021



Questions?



   Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee 

3F 
INFORMATION 

ITEM 



Engineering and Construction 
Management Project Updates

Jerry Burke, PE

Manager of Engineering

June 2021



2

Project 
Location

Map



CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements
Project Goal: Extend Asset Life

3

Phase Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/  
Change Orders

Design
(Current) CDM Smith $4 M 12%

Construction TBD $0 0%

Total Project Budget: $26.8 M
Project Completion: April 2023
Design Percent Complete: 75%



NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement
Project Goal: Increase reliability

4

Phase Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/  
Change Orders

Design
(Current) Michael Baker $271 K 0%

Construction TBD $0 0%

Total Project Budget: $500 K
Project Completion: January 2023

Design Percent Complete: 40%



RP-1 Aeration Membrane Replacement
Project Goal: Extend Asset Life

5

Phase Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/  
Change Orders

Contractor 
Prequalification

(Current)
In-House N/A 0%

Construction TBD $0 0%

Total Project Budget: $2.9 M
Project Completion: April 2022
Design Percent Complete: 30%


	Agenda 1
	Agenda 2
	Agenda 3
	Agenda 4
	Agenda 5
	Consent Item 1A
	Consent Item 1B
	Consent Item 1C
	Consent Item 1D
	Action Item 2A
	Action Item 2B
	Action Item 2C
	Action Item 2D
	Information Item 3A
	Information Item 3B
	Information Item 3C
	Information Item 3D
	Information Item 3E
	Information Item 3F



